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I N D K P K N D K N T AUDITORS1 RKPORT

To the I lonorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Liberty
l . iber t \  South Carolina

Report on the !• i iuu i r ia ! S ta l rmcnl* ,

We have audited the accompanying f inancia l statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Liberty as of and for the year ended June
30, 2015, which collectively comprise the City's basic f inancial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Kinancial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and lair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of f inancial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibili ty is to express opinions on these f inancial statements based on our audit . We conducted our audit in
accordance with audi t ing standards generally accepted in the Uni ted Stales of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about uhethcr the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audi t involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, inc luding the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the f inancia l statements in order to
design audi t procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audi t also includes
eva lua t ing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluat ing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the aud i t evidence we have obtained is suff ic ient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

P. O. Box 925
Easley, S. C. 29641

Telephone (864) 855-5621 Fax (864) 855-5622
Member of

American Institute of Certified Publ ic Accountants
South Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountaits
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To the I lonorable Mayor and Members of the City Counci l
Ci t \f Liberty
Paue Two

INUEPENDENT AUDITORS' RKPORT (CONTINUED)

Opinions

In our opinion, the f inancia l statements referred to above present f a i r K , in all mater ia l respects, the respecti\ f inanc ia l
position of the governmental ac t iv i t i e s , the business-type act ivi t ies , each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
in fo rma t ion of the City of Liberty, South Carolina, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in l lnancial position
and, \ \here applicable, cash Hows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the Uni t ed States of America.

Other Matters

Siif)}ikjiik'n!ctl Information

Account ing pr inc ip les generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America require that the management 's discussion and
anaK sis. the budgetary comparison in fo rmat ion on pages -14-45 and 46-50. the Schedule of the C i t \ ' s Proportionate
Shares of the Net Pension Liabilities on page 51 and the Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions on page 52 be
presented lo supplement the basic l lnancial statements. Such in fo rma t ion , a l though not a part of the basic f inanc ia l
statements, is required by the Governmenta l Account ing Standards Board. \ \ho considers it to be an essential part of
f i n a n c i a l reporting for p lac ing the basic f i n a n c i a l statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or h i s t o r i c a l
context. We have applied certain l i m i t e d procedures lo the required supplemental^ i n fo rma t ion in accordance \ \ i l h
aud i t i ng standards generally accepted in the Uni ted Slates of America, \ \ h i ch consisted of inqui r ies of management
about the methods of preparing the in format ion and comparing the in format ion for consistency \ \ i l h management ' s
responses lo our i n q u i r i e s , the basic l lnancial statements, and other knowledge we obtained dur ing our audi t of the basic
f inanc ia l statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the l i m i t e d
procedures do not provide us w i th sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management 's discussion and analysis tha t accounting principles generally accepted in the
Uni ted Stales of America require to be presented to supplement the basic llnancial statements. Such missing
i n f o r m a t i o n , a l though not a part of the basic l lnancia l statements, is required by the Governmental Account ing
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of f i n a n c i a l reporting for p lacing the basie f inancia l statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical conlcxl. Our opinion on the basic l lnancial statements is not
affected by ihis missing informat ion.



To the 1 lonorahle Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Liberty
Page Three

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS1 REPORT (CONTINUED)

Olher Reporting Required By Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance u i l h Govi.'rnnn.'iit Auditing Standards. \\ ha\  also issued our report dated November 30, 2015. on our
consideration of the City of Liberty 's i n t e r n a l control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance wi th
certain provis ions of la \ \s , regulat ions, contracts, granl agreements, and other mailers. 'Hie purpose of that rcporl is to
describe the scope of our test ing of in te r im! control over financial reporting and compl iance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the i n t e r n a l control over l lnancia l reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audi t performed in accordance w i t h (.jovcnuncnl Auditing Standards in considering the Cil\f
Liberty's in terna l control over financial reporting and compliance.

Olhcr Information

Our audi t was conducted for the purpose of Ibrming opinions on the financial statements thai collcclivcly comprise the
City of Liberty's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Lines, Assessments, and Surcharges on page 54 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of I ines, Assessmenls. and Surcharges is the responsibi l i ty of management and was derived from and
relate directly to the under ly ing accounting and other records used to prepare the basic l lnancial statements. Such
informat ion has been subjected to the aud i t i ng procedures applied in the audi t of the basic financial statements and
certain addi t iona l procedures, i n c l u d i n g comparing and reconci l ing such informat ion directly to the u n d e r l y i n g
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other a d d i t i o n a l procedures in accordance w i t h a u d i t i n g standards generally accepted in the Uni ted
Stales ot America . In our opinion, the Schedule of Fines. Assessments, and Surcharges is fa i rK stated, in all mater ia l
respects, in relat ion lo the basic financial statements as a whole.

CUITN.T. A.

Lasley, South Carolina
November 30, 2015



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

J U N E 30, 2015

ASSKTS
Current Assets:
(. 'asb and ciish cquiutlcnls
Receivables (net o l ' a l l ouance lo r u n c o l l e c l i b l e s )

I ' l i l i t \s
Other

I n t e r n a l balances
Due Ironi oilier governments
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Kesti ictcd assets

I ' . i sh
Capi ta l assets

I .,n,l
Const ruc t ion In Progress
B u i l d i n g s and s\m improvemen t s
Koads. s ideualks . and eil\s
Wnler i i i id sewer l ines
Vehic les
Machmerv iind equipment
I ' u m i l i n v and t l \unvs
Sol' lULHX'

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total non-current assets

Total assets
DFI F K K K D Ol I FLOWS OF RESOURCES
SCKS nel dilTerenee between expected and a c t u a l expcrienee
related to pensi ims
I'ORS nel d i l ' t e ivnee belueen expeeted and actual expei'ience
related In pensions

SC'KS i el i reinenl eon I ri but inns niiide subsequent lo 06 3 ( ) ' I 4
I 'OKS re t i r emen t e u i i t r i h u i i o n s made subsequenl to 0 ( v 3 ( ) / l J

Total defer red outflows of resources
Total assets and defer red outflows of resources

L I A B I L I T I E S
Current l iab i l i t i e s :
Accrued l i a b i l i t i e s
Accrued inlerest
C a p i t a l lease obl igat ions, current
Bonds pa\, c u n e n i
t ' u s u n i i c i 1 deposits snb iec l lo r e l u n d s
I n l c r n a l biikmces

Totnl current l i a b i l i t i e s
Mon-current l i a b i l i t i e s :
(. 'itmpens.iled absences
SCKS net pension l i a b i l i t y
I 'OKS nel pension l i a h i l i u
Cap i t a l lease ob l iga t ions , non-current
Bonds pavuble . non-current

I'oti i l noi icurrent l i a b i l i t i e s
Total l iab i l i t i e s

(•overnmental

Activi t ies

S 3X9,6X3

.

57.307
-

22X.7S1

973
676,744

2X2.2-17

11-1.668

2.X63
I.5S6.WI

1.261.876
-

1.033. II 19

765.-IOX

12.092

32.00.1

(3.245,153)

1,846,015

2,522,759

15.068

32.101

36.346
1 1 0^676

194,191

2,716,950

167.651
2.575

-15,5X9
4S.999

-
613.955

878,769

•16.95 1

531.776
1.202.9.U)

155.2-12

-
1,936,902
2,815,671

Primary Government

Iliisiness-typc
Activities

S

157.889

40.053

613.955
-

5,860

817,757

19.796

6.414
-

72.713
-

5.623.170

152.731
•130.530

-

21.208

t2.620.256j
3,706,306

4,524.063

8,11 -1

-

19.572
-

27,686
4,551,749

1 2 1 . 5 3 1
•1.864

-

13.81-1
17,205

.

157,414

12.47-1

286.361
-
-

136.01 1
434,849

592,263

Total

1, 3X9,6X3

I 5 7. 8X9
97.360

613.955

228.781

6.X33

1,494,501

^ 12.04 3

121 . 082

2.803
1.659.70-1

1.261.876

5.623.170
1.185.750

1.195.938

12.092

53.212
(5.X65.409)

5,552,321

7,046,822

23.182

32.101

55.918

1 10,676

221.877

7,268.699

289.182

7.439
-15,5X9

62.813
17.205

6H. 95 5

1,036,183

59.428
8 1 8 . 1 3 7

1,202,930

155.242

136.014

2,371,751

3,407,934
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CITY OK LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NKT POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

I'rimiirv Government
Governmental

A c t i v i t i e s
Business-!) pe

Act iv i t ies lota I

D K K K K K K I ) INFLOWS OF KKSOl'IU KS
SCRS net difference helueen projected ;md act mi I

earnings related to pensions

POKS net d i f ference between projected and ac tua l

earnings related to pensions

Toliil deterred inflows of resources
Total l iab i l i t i e s ;iiul deferred inf lows of resources

!SKT POSH ION
I n v e s t e d in capi ta l assets, net of related debl
Rcstnck'd for

I ucal l;i \ l and \ i c t i n i s ' assislaiKX'
Reeix'Lition and tourism

44,833

139,188
184.021

2,999,692

1.563.768

32.088
23.S-H)

226.319
(2,128.757)

24.143
616,406

248J{33_

Total in.11 posit ion

68.976

.139,188
2118.164

3.616,098

5.250,278

3 2. OSS
23.840

226.319

LLKZMI-U

S 3,652,601



C I T Y OF LIBERTY. SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E N D E D JUNE 30, 2015

Fu nction/Programs
Primary government

Governmental activities
General government
Police

Fire
Public Works
Recreation

Total governmental ac t iv i t i e s

Business-t\e act iv ities
U t i l i t y system

Total primary government

Expenses

393.908

848-805

613.480

377.987

423.865

2.658.045

1.284.218

1̂ ,942.263

(•encral Revenues:

Local taxes
State-shared re\enucs
I ines

Restricted i n v e -
Other revenlies

Total general revenues

Changes in net position

Net position, hcginn
Restatement

Net position, beginn

Net position, ending

Net
Proaram Revenues

Operatins Capital

Revenues (Expenses) and
Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Charges For Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities

S 388.912 S - S S (4.9961
17.2^8 76.760 10.129 (744.6.381

225.6.36 - - ( 38~ .844 )
165.516 - - ( 2 1 2 . 4 7 1 )
99.986 - - (323.879)

897.328 76.760 10.129 (1.673.828)

1,263,437 - 100,181

1 . 1 1 2 . 1 7 2
ucs 71.555

173.592

;-nt earnings
124.065

ten lies 1 .48 1 .384
m (192.444)
i£. previouslv reported 1,638,747

(1,729.045)
,g. restated (90.298)

S (282.742)

S

79.400

79.400

99
3.454
3.553

82.953
4.134.716
(282.326)

3.852.390
S 3.935.343

Total

S (4.996)
(744.6.38)
( .387.844)
( 2 1 2 . 4 7 1 )
(323-879)

(1.673.828)

79,400

(1.594.428)

1 . 1 1 2 . 1 7 2
71 .555

P.3.592

P7 519
1,484.937
(109,491)

5.773.463
(2,011.371)
3,762.092

S_i&52̂ ill

The accomp.nn ing notes arc an integral pun ot the hnancia l statements.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUND
J U N E 30, 2015

Assets:
Cash iind cash e q u i v a l e n t s S 3K9.683
Recciv ables

! axes licences lines 199.352
' ) iade accounts 13.92.1
Other 72.X 13
Prepaid expenses 973

Res t r i c t ed assels
Cash and cash e q u i v a l e n t s 282,247

Total assets $ 958.991
Liabi l i t ies :

Accrued payro l l l i a h i l i l i e s S 76,616
Accrued l i a h i l i l i e s 91.03?
I n l e r n a l balances
I 'nearned revenue

Total l i a b i l i t i e s 783.927
Deterred Inflows of Resources:

U n a v a i l a b l e revenue , proper!) taxes __ HL346
Total deferred inf lows uf resources 82,346

I L I n d Balances:
Nlouspendabk'

Prepaid expenses 973
Reminded 282.24""
Unassigncd t l90 ,502 j

Total fund balances 92,718
Total l i ab i l i t i e s , deferred inf lows of resources, and fund balances S 958,991

Fund Balances- Total Governmental Fund $ 92.7 IX
A i n o u n t s reported for governmenta l a c t i v i l ies in the statement

o l 'ne t posi t ion are different because:
Capital assets used in g o v e r n m e n t a l aeliv ilies are not financial
resources and. therefore, are not reported in the govern men t i l l I 'und 1.563.768
Long-term l i a b i l i t i e s are not due and pa \ab le in the current period
and. therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund

.Accrued compensated absences (16,954)
Bonds pavah le (4X.999)
Capi ta l leases (200,831)
SCRS net pension l i a b i l i t y (531 .776)
I'ORS net pension l i a h i l n v 11.202.930)

I he net difference between the expected and the a c t u a l experience as related to
pensions and the SCRS and I 'ORS ret i rement con t r ibu t ions made subsequent
to the measurement date of June 30. 2014 are a l l reported as deferred ou l l l o \ \
of resources in the statement of net posi t ion. 1 hese are not I m a n c i u l resources
and. therefore, aie not reported in the g o v e r n m e n t a l funds. 194 .191

I he i ie i difference betueen ihe projected and ac tua l m\c-. tmeni earnings as related
to pensions i> reported as a defei rcd i n f l o w ol resources in the statement of net
pos i t i on I h i s is not reported in the gov e rnmenia l f u n d s . ( 184.02 I )
Lnearned r e v e n u e in the g o v e r n m e n t a l fund i s s u s c e p t i b l e to
f u l l accrual in the e n t i t \ - v v idc s t a tements 2.32 I
Propcrl) taxes, deferred i n f l o w s ol ' resources m the gov e r n m c n k i l fund.
,ire suscept ib le to l u l l accrual in the c n t i U - v v i d e s ta tements . 82.346
Accrued interest expense is recorded for g o v e r n m e n l - v v ide s ta tements
but is not recorded in the governmenta l fund j2,575j

Net Posit ion Of Governmental A c t i v i t i e s S_ (282^42]
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
Taxes
Permits and fees
l-'incs and forfeitures

Shared revenues
Miscellaneous
Charges for services

Total Revenues

S 1.103.3-11

388.951
173,592

2-41.555
271.217

278,652

2,457,308

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Administrative Department
Police Department

Fire Department
Public Works Department
Recreation Department

DEBT SERVICE:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Capital leases

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Kund Balance

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

KUND BALANCE, ENDING

378.365
866,153
567,1 86
443,095
375,440

87,888

2,723.306

(265,998)

I 67,883

167.883

(98,115)

190,833

'he accompanying notes are an integral pail of the financial statements.

-X-



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR HIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNK 30, 2015

Net change in fund balance- total governmental fund (S98 ,115)
Amounts reporlcd for governmental a c t i v i t i e s in the statement of ac t iv i t ies are d i f ferent because:

The governmental fund reports capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of act ivi t ies , the cost of those assets is allocated over iheir estimated
useful l ives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which depreciation exceeded cap i t a l out lays in the current period.

The de ta i l s of the difference arc as follows:
Capital ou t l ays $ 221.438
Depreciation expense _i251,854) (30 ,416)

Governmental funds report ret irement contr ibut ions made subsequent to the measurement
date of J u n e 30, 2014 as expenditures. However, these retirement cont r ibut ions are not reported
in the statement of ac t iv i t i e s but arc reported as deferred outflows of resources in the
statement of net position. The actual pension expense reported in the statement of activities
is the Ci ty ' s proportionate shares of the annual changes in both the SCRS and PORS net pension l iab i l i t i es .
This is the amount by which the pension expense exceeded the retirement contr ibut ions
that were made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30. 2014.

The details of the difference are as follows:
SCRS and PORS ret i rement con t r ibu t ions subsequent to
the measurement date of J u n e 30, 2014 $ 147,022
SCRS and PORS proportionate pension expense L!42A5J5) 4,507

Repayment of debt p r inc ipa l is an expendi ture in the governmental fund, but the
repayments reduce long-term l i a b i l i t i e s in the statement of net position. This is the
amount of long-term debt payments. 87,888

Unearned revenue in the governmental fund is susceptible to f u l l accrual on the e ru iu
w i d e s ta tement . This amount is a net decrease in unearned revenue of $538. (538)

Properl> taxes, deferred i n l l o w s ol ' resources in the governmental fund are suscept ible lo f u l l
accrual on the ent i ty-wide statements, This amount is a net increase in deferred i n f l o w s of $8,83 1 . 8.83 I

Some expenses reported in the statement of ac t iv i t i e s do not require the use ol current
f inanc ia l resources and are not reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. This
includes the net decrease in compensated absences of $2,798, a decrease in expenses. 2,798

Accrued interest expense is reported in the ent i ty-wide statements but is not reported in
the governmental fund. This includes the neldecrease in accrued interest, a reduction in
in expenses. 484

' fhe governmenta l fund reports capital lease obl igat ions as other fmancingsources. However in the
enl i t \ -wide statements, capi ta l lease obligations are reported as add i t i ona l l i ab i l i t i e s . U67Ji83)

Change in net position of governmental activities $(192,444)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the f i n a n c i a l statements.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR KNDED JUNE 30, 2015

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

REVENUES:
Taxes
Permits and fees
l-'ines and forfeitures
Shared revenues
Miscel laneous
Charges for services

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Adminis t ra t ive Department
Police Department
[ ;irc Department
Publ ic Works Department
Recreation Department
Capital Hxpenditures

DEBT SERVICE:
Pr inc ipa l
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over ( U n d e r ) Expenditures

OTIIKK FINANCING SOURCES:
Capital leases

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE, ENDING

O R I G I N A L

$ 1.034,600
364,400
150.000
268,000
223,260
26.1, 100

2,301,360

279,559
766,502
536,156
292,964
276,269

61,891

65,000
6,500

2,284,841

16,519

-

16,519

190,833

$ 207.352

FINAL

$ 1.034,600
364.400
150,000
268,000
223,260

._26IJOQ

2,301,360

279,559
766,502
536,156
292,964
276,269

61,891

65,000
6,500

2,284,841

16,519

_

16,519

190,833

S 207,352

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

$ 1 ,103 ,341
388,951
173,592
241,555
2 7 1 , 2 1 7

.278,652

2,457,308

367,095
817.841
563,764
301,789
358,312
221,438

87,888
-\ 79

2,723,306

(265,998)

167,883

167,883

(98,115)

190,833

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE ( N E G A T I V E )

$ 68,741
24,551
23.592

( 26,44 5)
47,957
17.552

155,948

(87,536)
(51,339)
(27.608)

(8.825)
(82,043)

(159.547)

(22,888)
..JJ2I

(438,465)

(282,517)

167,883

167,883

(114,634)

S (114,634)

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets

Operat ional Receivables (net of a lkmance foruncol lec t ib les )
CDIUi Grant Receivable
Prepaid expenses
I n t e r n a l balances

Total current assets
Non-current Assets
Restricted Assets

Cash
C'api ta l assets

Land
B u i l d i n g s and system improvements
Waler and sewer l i n e s
Vehic les
Machinery and equipment
Software
Less: Accumula ted depreciation

Total non-current assets
Total assets

D K K E R K K I ) OUTFLOWS OK RESOURCES
SC'RS net difference between expected and ac tua l experience
related to pensions
SCRS retirement contr ibut ions made subsequent to 06/30/14

Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

L I A B I L I T I E S
Current L iab i l i t i e s

Accrued l i a b i l i t i e s
Accrued interest
Bonds pa\able, current
Customer deposits subject to refund

Total current l i ab i l i t i e s
Non-current L i a b i l i t i e s

Compensated absences
SC'KS net pension l i a b i l i t y
Bonds pa\ablc, non-current

Total non-current l iabi l i t ies
Total l iabili t ies

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
SC'RS net difference betueen projected and actual earnings
related to pensions

Total tl el erred inflows of resources
Total l iab i l i t i e s and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net position

157,889
40,053

5,860
A1_3,9_5_5__
817,757

19,796

6.414

72,713
5.623,170

152 .731
430.530

21,208

3,706.306
S 4,524,063

$ 8 .114
.J.yJJ2

27.686
S4.551.749

$ 1 2 1 , 5 3 1
4.864

13,814
17,20?

157.414

12.474
286,361
136,014
434.849

S 592.263

24,143
S 616,406

S 3.686,510
248.833

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the f i n a n c i a l sialements.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

OPERATING R E V E N U E S :
Water h i l l i n g s
Sewer h i l l i n g s
Miscel laneous

Total Operating Revenues

S 572.336
69 1 , 1 0 1

3,454

1,266.891

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Water Department
Water Purchases
Se\\er Department
County faci l i ty tees
[ l i t e r -mun ic ipa l agreement
Cramer Koper fees
Depreciation
Amorti/.ation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

268.037
203.237
185.017
326.124
100.085
51.559
141.291

1,277.261

(10,370)

NON-OPERATING R E V E N U E S (EXPENSES):
In t e re s t income
Interes t expense

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Loss lie tore Capital Grant Contr ibut ions

Capital Grant Con t r ibu t ions

Change in net position

99

(6,957)

(6,858)

(17 .228)

10QJ_8_L

82,953

TOTAL NET POSITION, PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

RESTATEMENT

TOTAL NET POSITION, RESTATED

TOTAL NET POSITION, E N D I N G

4,134,716

(282,326)

3.852,390

I he accompanying notes are an integral part of the f i n a n c i a l statements



C I T Y OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J U N K 30, 2015

C A S H FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
P a v m c n l s lo emplovecs

Net cash provided by uperating act iv i t ies

CASH FLOWS FKOIM CAPITAL AND RELATED
F I N A N C I N G ACTIVITIES:

Ciish decrease in i n t e r n a l ba lances
Pr inc ipa l paid on r e v e n u e bonds
interest paid on r e v e n u e bonds
C a p i t a l timm eon l r ihu l ion
Capi ta l assets purchased

Net tush used lor capital and related f inanc ing act iv i t ies

$ 1.2-18,591
(877.736)

187,749

108.096
I 13.636)

(7.669)

60.128
L.33-L668J

( 187.749)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Income

Net cash provided hy investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equ iva lent s

("ash And Cash K q u i v a l c n t s , Be^innin^ of Year

Cash And Cash Equiva lent s , Knd Of \r

Reconcil iat ion Of Operating Income To Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Operat ing Loss
A d j u s t m e n t s to reconcile opera t ing loss lo net

easli pro\d h\g ae t i \s
Depreciat ion and amorli /al ion
Increase in operational receivables
Increase in prepaid expenses
I )ec rea.se in prepaid \ \a te r accounts reee iv able
Increase in compensated absences
Increase in deposits
Increase in accrued l i a b i l i t i e s
Increase in accrued salaries
Increase in accrued p a v r o l ! taxes
Inereiise in pension expense per ( i . X S B Slalement No 68

99

99

99

99

19.796

I 43.202
( 19.998)
I 1, 174)

(382)
1.026
2.0X11

71.09-1
1.646

126
499

l o la l adjuslments 1 98, 1 1 9

Net ( a s h Provided By Operating Act ivi t ies S ___ 187,7-4!?

I be Liceompanv ing notes are an in leg ia l part of t lx . 1 l l nanc i a l statcmei



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The f inancia l statements of the City of Liberty. South Carolina (the Ci ty) have been prepared in conformity wi th
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for established governmental accounting and f inancia l
reporting principles . The more signif icant of the City's account ing policies are described below.

Reporting Knti ly: The City operates under a Council form of government and provides the fol lowing services: p u b l i c
safety (police and fire), streets, sanitat ion, water and sewer, and general and adminis t ra t ive . In eva lua t ing how to define
the City, for f inancia l reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component uni ts . The decision to
inc lude a potential component u n i t in the reporting ent i ty was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The
basic but not the only criterion for i nc lud ing a potential component un i t within the reporting entity is the governing
body's a b i l i t y to exercise oversight responsibil i ty. The most s ignif icant manifestation of t h i s a b i l i t y is financial
interdependency. Other manifestat ions of the ab i l i t y to exercise oversight responsibil i ty include, but are not l imi ted to.
the selection of governing authority, ihe designation of management, the ab i l i t y to s igni f icant ly inf luence operations,
and accountab i l i ty for fiscal matters. A second cri terion used in eva lua t ing potential component u n i t s is the scope of
public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits the City and/or its
citi /ens, or whether the ac t iv i ty is conducted wi th in the geographic boundaries of the City and is generally available to
its c i t i /ens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component un i t s for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
entity is the existence of special f inancing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight
responsib i l i t ies . Based upon the appl ica t ion of these cri teria, the f inanc ia l statements for the City consist only of the
funds and account groups of the City. The City has no oversight respons ib i l i ty for any other governmental entity.

The fo l lowing is a summary of the more s igni f icant policies:

GASB Statement No, 62, "Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
Novemher 30, 1989 FASB and AlCPA Pronouncements" ' I he primary objective of GASB No. 62 is to direct ly
incorporate the applicable guidance from certain l-'ASli and AlCPA pronouncements into the state and local
government accounting and reporting standards.

GASB Statement No. 63, "Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position" This statement requires governments to report all assets, deferred outflows of resources, l i a b i l i t i e s ,
deferred in f lows of resources, and a net position of the governments, which is the residual of all other elements
presented in the enti ty 's statement of financial position.

GASR Statement No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities " This statement requires governments
to reclassify certain items as deferred outf lows of resources that were previously reported as assets and to rcclassify
certain items as deferred inf lows of resources that were previously reported as l iab i l i t i es . This statement also provides
other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements of deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inllows of resources. Specifically, the statement amends the cr i ter ia for determining major funds
and l i m i t s the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

The City adopted the following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements for the year
ended June 30. 2015.

GASB Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions" This statement provides guidance on a
stale or local government employer's account ing and reporting for employee pensions. Under this statement, the
employer is to recogni/.e a net pension l i a b i l i t y measured as of a date (the measurement dale) no earlier than the end of
its prior fiscal year. Also, if a state or local government employer makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension plan
between the measurement date of Ihe reported net pension l i a b i l i t y and the end of the employer's reporting period, the
statement requires the employer to recogni/e its contributions as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net
position. In addition, the statement requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inllovvs of
resources in the statement of net position for changes that arise from other types of events in the net pension l i a b i l i t y of
a stale or local government employer. Moreover, the statement requires the employer to adjust the beginning net
position balance for what the amount would have been if the statement had been implemented in the employer's prior
reporting period. Specifically, the beg inn ing net position balance should be adjusted for the fol lowing items determined
as of the measurement dale of the beginning net pension l i a b i l i t y : the net pension l i a b i l i t y : con t r ibu t ions made by the
employer; and any deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ol 'resources, if de terminabte . Contr ibut ions
made by the employer subsequent lo the measurement date ol' the net pension l i a b i l i t y are now required to be
recogni/ed as deferred out f lows of resources in the slatemenl of net positon. However, GASH Statement No, 68 further
states that the beginning net position should not be adjusted for any deferred outflows of resources, i nc lud ing
contributions made subsequent to the measurement dale of the beginning net pension liability, or any deferred inflows
of resources if it is not practical to determine all of the amounts. This requirement under the statement was later
amended with the adoption of CASH Statement No. 7/, which is explained below.

CASH Statement No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date'1 This
statement is an amendment to paragraph 137 of GASB Statement No. 68. Before this amendment, paragraph 137 of
GASB Statement No. 68 stated that if it was not practical for an employer to determine the amounts for a l l deferred
outf lows of resources and deferred inflows of resources as related lo pensions then the beginning net position balance
should not be adjusted for any deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. However, this could
result in a s ignif icant understatement of the employer's beginning net position and expense. Therefore, this statement
amends paragraph 137 of GASH Statement No. 68 to require that upon implementat ion of GASB Statement No. 68, a
government is to adjust its beginning net position balance for contributions made subsequent to the measurement date
of the beginning net pension l i ab i l i ty . GASB Statement No. 68 continues to require that the beginning net position be
adjusted for other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources only if it is practical to determine
such amounts upon implementation of the statement. This was not amended by GASH Statement No. 71.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide f inancia l statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary act ivi t ies of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements.

Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues or from specific1

revenue sources such as grants, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.

The statement of act ivi t ies demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses arc those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include !) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead •&$ general revenues.

Separate f inancial statements are provided for the governmental fund and the proprietary fund.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide and the proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded
when a l i a b i l i t y is incurred, regardless of the t iming of related cash Hows. Property taxes arc recogni/cd as revenue in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and s imi la r items are recogni/ed as revenue as soon as all e l ig ib i l i ty
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund f inancial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be ava i lab le when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay l iab i l i t i es of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be avai lable if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgements, arc recorded only when payment is due.

The government reports the fol lowing major government fund:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all f inancial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The government reports the following major proprietary fund:

The enterprise fund accounts for the ac t iv i t i es of the u t i l i t y services.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfnnd activity has been el iminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, operating grants and contr ibutions. ;md capital grants and contributions, inc luding special assessments.
I n t e r n a l l y dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include al l taxes.

Proprietary funds d i s t inguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperaling items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund ' s principal ongoing operations. The pr incipal operating revenues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund ineludc the eost of sales and services, administrat ive
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government 's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The preparation of f inancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balance

Cash and Investments:

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments wi th a maturi ty date wi th in three months
of the dale acquired by the government. I f appl icable , investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value.
Section 6-5-10 of the SC Code of Laws out l ines authorized investments for poli t ical subdivis ions . The City has chosen
to adhere to the SC Code of Laws regarding the type of investments thai it is allowed to make as opposed to formally
adopting its own deposit and investment policy.

Receivables ami Payables;

Outstanding balances between funds arc reported as "internal balances." Advances between funds, as reported in the
fund f inanc ia l statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in the applicable governmental fund to indicate
that they arc not avai lable for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes, other than vehicle taxes, are normally levied in October and are payable without penalty through the
fol lowing January 15"'. Vehicle taxes arc assessed and collected on a monthly, cyclical basis. By contract the City has
authorised Pickens County to assess and collect all vehicle taxes. These collections arc remitted to the City of Liberty
bv the Pickens County Treasurer.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balance (continued)

Prepaid Items:

Payments made to vendors for services that w i l l benefit periods beyond the end of the fiscal year arc recorded as
prepaid items.

Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash in the general fund consists of fines, assessments, and surcharges retained by (he City for the purpose of
v ic t ims ' assistance. The restricted asset cash is required to be maintained in a separate bank account by the State of
South Carolina.

Restricted cash in the genera! fund also consists of the revenue generated by the hospitality tax to be used by the City
exclusively for recreation and tourism development.

furthermore, restricted cash in the general fund consists of the cash held in the Special 'fax Allocation l ;und which is to
be used to provide for the payment of the principal and interest of the Tax Increment Bond, Series 2004.

Such general fund resources are included in cash on the financial statements and consist of the following:

Local Law Hnlbrcement and Vic t ims ' Assistance $ 32.088
Recreation and Tourism 23,840
TIP Debt Service ... 226JJ9

Total Restricted Cash in General Fund S 282T247

Restricted cash in the enterprise fund consists of certain resources set aside for the repayment of certain designated expenses
The restricted cash is l imi ted by applicable bond covenants. Such resources are included in cash on the statement of net
position and consist of the following:

Reserve for Contingency $ 9,898
Reserve for Depreciation 9,898

Total Restricted Cash in Enterprise Fund S 19,796

The "contingency" account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies. The "depreciation"
account is used to report resources set aside to fund asset renewals and replacements.

Capital Assets:

Capital assets, which include properly, plant , and equipment , are reported in the governmental or business-type
a c t i v i t i e s columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets
with an i n i t i a l , i n d i v i d u a l cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful l i fe in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at his tor ical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

-18-



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (Continued):

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs (repairs thai do not add lo the value of the assets or mater ia l ly extend Ihc
assets" l ives) are not capitali /ed.

Property, plant , and equipment of Ihc pr imary government is depreciated us ing the straight l ine method over the
fol lcming estimated useful lives:

listimated
Assets ,_.Hs_eJiiJ._ Lives

Bui ld ings 10-40 Years
Roads, sidewalks, and city lots 20 Years
Bu i ld ing Improvements 4-15 Years
Vehicles 3-5 Years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 Years
Furni ture & fixtures 5 Years
Software 3 Years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of f i nanc i a l position w i l l sometimes report a scparalc section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future pcriod(s) and so w i l l not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) u n t i l then.

In addi t ion lo l i ab i l i t i e s , the statement of f inanc ia l posit ion w i l l sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element , deferred inflows of resources, represents an acqu is i t ion of net
position that applies to a future period and so w i l l not be rccogni/cd as an inflow of resources (revenue) u n t i l that t ime.

Compensated Absences:

l l is the City's policy lo permit ful l - l ime employees lo accumulate l imited amounts of earned vacation leave. Upon
separation from service, employees receive payment for a portion of unused vacation leave subject lo length of service
and contract classification. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements.

/. (t riff-term Obligations:

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as a l i ab i l i ty .

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt as other financing sources of the current
period.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO TI1K FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Position and Fund Balance:

Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements arc classified as invested in capital
assets, not of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed
by law through slate statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the
hierarchy of constraints placed on how the fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not
in spendable form or(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts thai are restricted to specific purposes externally by
creditors or imposed by law.

Commilled Fund Balance - This classification is the portion of the fund balance that can only be used for specific
purposes imposed by majority vote by the City of Liberty's governing body (highest level of decision-making
authority). Any changes or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing body.

Assigned fund balance 'Hiis classification is the portion of the fund balance that the City of Liberty intends to use for
specific purposes as established by the City's Council or by the City's Mayor.

Unassigned fund balance - This classification is the portion of the fund balance that has not been restricted, committed,
or assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

Unless specifically designated otherwise, fund expenditures and encumbrances arc from restricted fund balance to the
extent of restricted fund balance revenue, followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned
fund balance, respectively.

Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the City's financial position and results
of operations and disclosure of contingent assels and liabilities. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

-20-



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net position

'Hie governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconcil iat ion between fund balance total governmental fund 'And net
position- governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. One element of the
reconciliation stales that capital assets used in government activities are not llnancial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental fund hut are reported in the government-wide statement of net position.

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $ 1,563,768

Unearned revenue, a l i ab i l i ty in the governmental fund, is susceptible to full accrual in the government-wide statement
of net position. This is the additional unearned revenue that has been taken into income in the
government-wide statements.

Unearned Revenue $ 2,321

Property taxes, deferred inflows of resources in the governmental fund, are susceptible to fu l l accrual in the
government-wide statement of net position. This is the additional deferred inflows of resources that have been taken
into income in the government-wide statements.

Deferred Inflows of Resources, Property Taxes $ 82,346

Another clement of the reconciliation states that accrued interest is recorded in the government-wide statements but is
not recorded in the governmental fund. This is the addi t ional accrued interest recorded in the government-wide
statement of net position.

Accrued Interest $ C-?5'?)

The governmental fund balance sheet inc ludes a reconciliation between fund balance - iota! governmental fund and net
position governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. Another clement of that
reconciliation explains that "lont>-term liabilities (not due and payable in the next f i s ca l year) arc not reported on the
uovcrnmcntal fund balance sheet The difference of ($2,03 1,490) consists of bonds payable of ($48,999), capital leases
payable of ($200,831), SCRS net pension liabili ty of ($531,776), PORS net pension liability oi ($1,202,930), and
compensated absences payable of ($46,954).

Capital Leases $ (200,83!)
Bonds Payable (48.999)
SCRS Net Pension Liabi l i ty (53 1,776)
PORS Net Pension L iab i l i t y (1,202,930)
Compensated Absences ...C4.61954)

Total $(2,031,490)



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2015

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet ami the government-wide
statement of net position (Continued)
furthermore, the government-wide statement of net position reports the net difference between the expeeted and the
actual experience as related to pensions as a deferred outflow of resources. Also, the SCRS and PORS retirement
contr ibutions made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2014 are reported as deferred outflows of resources
in the government-wide statement of net posit ion. The de ta i l s of this $194,191 difference are as follows:

SCRS net difference between expected and actual experience $ 15,068

PORS net difference between expected and actual experience 32,101

PORS retirement contr ibut ions subsequent to measurement dale 1 10,676

SCRS ret irement contr ibut ions subsequent to measurement date _ .... 36,346

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance-
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities $ 194,191

Lastly, the reconci l ia t ion explains that the net difference between the projected and the actual investment earnings as
related to pensions is reported as a deferred inflow of resources in the government-wide statement of net position. The
details of th is ($184,021) difference are as follows:

SCRS net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings $ (44,833)

PORS net difference between projected and ac tua l
investment earnings 1LL9J.88)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balance-
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities $. ._(.!_84?021)



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a reconcil iat ion
between net changes in fund balance total governmental Jund and changes in net position of governmental activities
as reported in the government-wide statement of act iv i t ies . One element of that reconci l iat ion explains that "The
governmental fund reports capital out lays as expenditures in the year of purchase. However, in the statement of
activi t ies, the cost of those assets is allocated over the i r estimated useful l ives and reported as depreciation expense."
The details of this ($30,416) difference are as follows:

Capital outlay (Current Year) $ 221,438
Depreciation expense [25_L.85_4)
Net adjustment to decrease nel changes in fund balances-- $ (30,416)
total governmental fund to arrive at changes in net position
of governmental activities

Another element of the reconciliation states that "payments on long-term debt are reported as expenditures in the
governmental fund. The same payments reduce long-term l i a b i l i t i e s in the statement of net position." The details of this
difference are as follows:

Pr inc ipa l repayments:
Capital Leases $ 40,710
Bonds payable _ ._47J78

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balance- $ 87,888
total governmental fund to arrive at changes in nel position
of governmental activities

Also, the reconcil iat ion explains that retirement cont r ibut ions made subsequent to the measurement period are not
reported in the statement of act ivi t ies but are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net posit ion.
However , the aetual pension expense reported in the statement of ac t iv i t ies is the City's proportionate share of the
a n n u a l change in the SCRS and PORS net pension l iabi l i t ies . The details of this $4,507 difference are as follows:

SCRS retirement contributions subsequent to
the measurement date of 06/30/14 $ 36,346

SCRS proportionate pension expense (37,272)

PORS retirement contributions subsequent to
the measurement date of 06/30/14 110,676

PORS proportionate pension expense iLOSJ^:!}

Nel adjustment to increase nel changes in fund balances-
total governmental fund \G arrive at changes in nel position
of governmental activities $ .4,507



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTK 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities (Continued)

Unearned revenue in the governmental fund is not recogni/cd as ineome
u n t i l receipt. In the entity-wide statements, revenue is recogni/ed on the
fu l l accrual basis.

Adjustment due to the net decrease in unearned revenue $ (538)

Properly taxes, deferred inf lows of resources in the governmental fund, are
not recognized as income u n t i l receipt. In the entity-wide statements, property
taxes are recogni/ed on the fu l l accrual basis.

Adjus tment due to the net increase in deferred inf lows of resources $ 8,83 1

Accrued interest expense is not recognized on the governmental
fund statements. Accrued interest is recognized and reported on the
entity-wide statements.

Adjustment due to the net decrease in accrued interest expense, a
reduction in expenses. $ 484

Some expenses reported in the statement of activit ies do not
require the use of current f inanc ia l resources and are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental fund. These include
the net decrease in compensated absences, a reduction in expenses. $ 2,798

The governmental fund reports capital lease obligations as other f inancing
sources. However, in the entity-wide statements, capital lease obligations are
reported as addi t iona l l iabil i t ies . $ (167^883)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Rudgetary information:

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: As set forth in the City Charter, the City Council adopts an annua l budget for the
general fund and the enterprise fund. The annual budget for the general fund is prepared in accordance with the basis of
account ing u t i l i zed by that fund. The budget for the enterprise fund is adopted under a basis consistent \v i th generally
aecepted accounting principles , except that depreciation and amortization arc not considered. Additionally, ea.sh outlays
for debt principal and fixed assets funded by operations are budgeted, but treated dif ferent ly in accordance with
generally aecepted accounting principles. After joint workshops with the City Council , the Mayor submits to the City
Council a proposed operating budget covering the general and enterprise funds for the fiscal year commencing the
f o l l o w i n g Ju ly 1. These- workshops and hearings are open to the publ ic . The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means for financing them. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted
through passage of an ordinance. Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts wi th in departments w i t h i n any fund; however, any revisions that
alter the total expenditures of any fund or transfer amounts between departments must be approved by the City Council.
The presented budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as last amended by the City Council. There arc no
reported differences between the original budget and the final budget.

Deposits and Investments:

Section 330.15 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's regulations governs the insurance coverage of the ^
accounts for pub l ic un i t s , which includes states, counties, m u n i c i p a l i t i e s , or any poli t ical subd iv i s ions of the pub l ic
un i t s . According to Section 330.15, the insurance coverage of public unit accounts depends upon the type of deposit and
the location of the insured depository in s t i t u t i on of the off icial custodian. If the publ ic u n i t and the publ ic u n i t ' s o f f i c i a l
custodian arc located in the same State, then all lime and savings deposits owned by the public unit arc combined and
insured up to $250,000. Also, all demand deposits owned by the publ ic u n i t arc combined and separately insured up to
$250,000. I lowever, if the public u n i t and the pub l i c uni t ' s official custodian are located in different States, time;
savings; and demand deposits owned by the public unit are combined and insured up to $250,000. In other words, l ime
and savings deposits would not be insured scparalely from demand deposits.

At June 30, 2015. the bank balance of the City's cash deposits held at First Citi/ens Bank was $674,580. and the bank
balance of ' the City's certificates of deposit was $19.796. Of the total bank balance of the City's cash deposits and
certificates of deposit, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. Since the City is located in South
Carol ina, and the official custodian is located in North Carolina, all deposits were combined and insured up to
$250,000. fherefore, total deposits at First Cili/ens Bank that were not insured by federal depository insurance were
$444,376 on June 30. 2015.

As of June 30, 2015. collateral was pledged to secure the non-federal depository insured bank deposits of the City ol

Liberty at First Citizens Bank.

The securities are held as book entries at the Federal Reserve in the name of the First Citizens Bank of North
Carolina (FCBNC) as Kscrow Agent for the First Citizens Bank of South Carolina (FCBSC). FCBNC is an independent,
t h i r d party e n t i t y from FCBSC. The securi t ies are pledged to the ent i ty and can be subs t i tu ted , but not released, without
(heir consent.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

Due From Other Governments

Due from other Governments to the City of Liberty's General Fund at June 30, 2015 consists of the following:

Hue from Slate of South Carolina - General Fund:
Local Option Sales 'Fax Distributions
Aid To Subdivision Distributions
Merchants Inventory Tax

Due from Pickens Count}
Property Taxes
Dispatch Services
Fire Protection
Part-time Wage Reimbursement for Fire Department
Reimbursement for Recreation Department

School Resource Officer Reimbursement from School District
Munic ipa l Association of South Carolina
SC Regional Housing Authority
Internal Revenue Service
City of Anderson

Juveni le Housing F'ees
City of Lasley

Juvenile Housing Fees
City of Pickens

Juveni le Housing Fees
City of Oconee

Juvenile Housing Fees
Town of Six Mile

Recycling Income
City of Pickens

Recvclinu Income

28,988
16.593

1,662

88.486
9,000

42,500
6,976

711
17,750
6,865
5,114
1,341

780

195

260

260

500

800

Total Due From Other Governments

-26-



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NO IKS TO Till: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning tending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Government activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 114.668 $ - $ S 114.668
Construction in progress 2,863 ; _ ^ 2ji63.
Total capital assets not being depreciatal I I 7,531 : - 117,531

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 1.576.991 10.000 - 1.586.991
Machinery and equipment 736.844 29,569 (1.005) 765.408
Lurn iUi re and IKlures 12.092 - - 12.092
Roads, s idewalks , and c i ty lots 1.255.696 6.180 - 1.261,876
Software 32.004 - - 32.004
Vehicles . ...905,94.1 __.17_5,689 (48.611) _ .U^M.!?
Total capital assets being depreciated 4.519.568 221,438 (49.616) 4,691.390

Less: accumulated deprecia t ion lor
B u i l d i n g s (998.480) (59.094) - (1.057.574)
Machinco and equ ipment (641,170) (38.906) 1.005 (679,071)
L u r n i l u r e a n d fixtures (10.544) (1 .078) - ( 11 .622 )
Roads, s idewalks , and c i ty lots (589.630) (68,1 10) - (657,740)
Sof tware (28.11-1) (1.667} - (29 ,781)
Vehic les (774.977) (82.999) ..._. 48.611 (809.365)
Total accumulated depreciation (3.042.915) (25K854) 49.616 (3.245.153)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1.476,653 (30.416) - 1,446,237

Governmental activities capital assets, net 3^1^524,184. £_ (3Ut416) S —- SL 1,563^768

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Government activities
General government $ 25.543
Police 37.048
Lire 49.700
P u b l i c works 75.609
Recreation .__.A1..954

Total depreciation expense- governmental activities 3L251JJ54-



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Business-type activities

Capi ta l assets not being depreciated

Und
Total cap i ta l assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
B u i l d i n g and s\slem improvements
Mach ine ry and equ ipmen t
Water and scucr lines
Soimare
In tang ib les
Vehic les
Total capita l assets being depreciated

Less: accumulated depreciation for
Bui ld ings and system improvements
Machinery and equipment
Water and sewer lines
Sof tware
I n t a n g i b l e s
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

Beginning

Aili
6,414

56.11 13
127.602

5. 308. 131)
21.208

S . I 25
il2J3_!_

5,973.809

(46.916)
(408.025)

(1.850,085)
(21.208)

(6.213)
_ _ ( 1 5 2 . 7 3 1 )

(2.485.178)

Total cap i ta l assets being depreciated, net 3,488,631

(Governmenta l activities capital assets, net S_3,495L045

Increases Decreases

16.700
2.928

315.040

334.668

(2.973)
(4.243)

(134.075)

(1 .912 )

(143.203)

191.465

(8 .125)

(8.125)

8.125

Ending
Balance

6.4 14
6.414

72.713
430.530

5.623.170
21.208

6.300.352

(49.889)
(412.268)

(1.984.160)
(21.208)

( 1 5 2 . 7 3 1 )
(2,620.256)

3.680,096
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTKS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The bonds payable of the general fund consist of the following:

Tax increment bond, series 2004 dated December 23, 2004 in the
amount of $450,000. Interest accrues on ihc bonds at 3.86% per
annum with a maturity date of December I, 2015. $ _4JL_9_99

Total General Fund Bonds Payable S 48,999

The follow ing represents ma tu r i t y of the general fund bonds payable as of June 30, 2015:

June 30, 2016 48,999

Total General Fund Bonds Payable S 48,999

Bonds payable o f t h e enterprise fund consist o f t h e following:

Water System Improvement Revenue Bonds, series 1983.
due in annua l instal lments of $2 1.305 i n c l u d i n g interest
that accrues at 5.00% per annum and the ma tu r i ty is in
November 2023. $.149,828

Total Enterprise Fund Bonds Payable S 149,828

The fol lowing represents matur i ty o f the enterprise fund reserve bonds as of June 30, 2015:

June 30, 2016 13.814
June 30. 2017 14.504
June 30. 2018 15.229
June 30, 2019 15,991
June 30, 2020 16,791
Thereafter 73.499

Total Enterprise Fund Bonds Payable S 149t828
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTES - LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

A n n u a l debt service requirements to amortize all bonds payable inc lud ing interest oulstanding of$43,062 are as
follows:

Year landing
June 30

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

Thereafter

Total

Tax
Increment

Bonds
$ 50,890

-
-
-
-

$ 50,890

Water
System

1983 Bonds
$ 21,305

21.305
21.305
21,305
21,305

...84,474

$ 190,999

Total
$ 72,195

21.305
21,305
21,305
21,305

.. 84A7.4

S 241,889

During the year ended June 30. 201 5, the fol lowing ehanges oecurred with the bonds payable:

General Fund:
Bonds payable

Balance Balance Due
July 1 , 2 0 1 4 . .Additions. _.Kcductions_ June 30. 2015 WithinJ__Ycar

_%J77_ $ - ($ ......47,178) $ ...48,9.99 $.48,999

Fota I

Enterprise Fund:
Revenue bonds 163.465 $

(S 47.178) S 48.999

149.828

S 48.999

$ 13J14

Total S 163T465 13T637> S 149T828



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisition of one 2014 Dodge Charger police
vehicle. The lease qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and. therefore has been recorded at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of its inception. The following is a summary of the
equipment leased under this capital lease agreement as of June 30, 201 5:

General Fund

Police Vehicle

lite following is a schedule ofthc future minimum lease paymentsfincluding interest) required under the capital lease
and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2015:

Year l-nding
Ji jne_30____

2016
2017
2018

Total minimum lease payments $ 35,520
Less: amount representing interest _.. .11J120J
Present value of future minimum
lease payments S 34T5U(L



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquis i t ion of a 201 5 l - re ight l tncr garbage truck for
the Publ ic Works Department. The lease qua l i t i e s as a capital lease for accounting purposes and. therefore has been
recorded at the present va lue of the future m i n i m u m lease payments as of the date of its inception. The fo l lowing is a
summary of the equ ipment leased under th i s capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2015:

_ _ -\\_ nd_

Publ ic Works Vehicle

The fol lowing is a schedule of the future m i n i m u m lease payments ( i n c l u d i n g interest) required under the capital lease
and the present value of the net m i n i m u m lease payments as of June 30, 2015:

Year F.nding
__June_lQ_ General l-'und

2016 $ 20,640
2017 20,640
2018 20,640
2019 20,640
2020 20,640

Thereafter 41,280
S 144.480

Total m i n i m u m lease payments $ 144,480
Less: amount representing interest (1 1,Q_97J
Present value oi' future m i n i m u m
lease payments S 133»383.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The City has entered into a lease agreement as lessee to finance the acquisi t ion of a 2005 Brush Truck for the Publ ic
Works Department. The lease qua l i f i e s as a capital lease for accounting purposes and. therefore has been recorded at
the present value of the future m i n i m u m lease payments as of the date of its inception. 'Hie fo l lowing is a summary of
the equipment leased under th i s capital lease agreement as of June 30, 2015:

General Fund,...

Publ ic Works Vehicle S 49,015

The fol lowing is a schedule of the future m i n i m u m lease payments ( i nc lud ing interest) required under the capital lease
and the present va lue of the net m i n i m u m lease payments as of June 30, 2015:

Year Ending
June 30 General Fund

2016 $ 16,890
2017 _16,890

S 33T78(1

Total m i n i m u m lease payments $ 33,780
Less: amount representing interest (832)
Present value of fu ture m i n i m u m
lease payments S 32,948_
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 6- CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended June 30. 2015, the following changes occurred in capital leases:

Balance Balance Due
J_illy.L2014 .Additions. . Payments June 30,20H Mth.mJ_Yea.r_

Police Vehicles $ 24,643 $ 34,500 ($ 24,643) $ 34,500 $ 11.332

Publ ic Works Vehicles 4.9,015 133,383 {JA067) 166,331 _34_1257

Total UZMgg S 167,883 (S_ 40,710) S 200,831 S 45r5j&

NOTE 7- OPERATING LEASES

The City has several non-cancelable operating leases for equipment that extend over the next five years. Rental
expenses for operating leases dur ing the twelve month period ended June 30, 2015 were approximately $17,600.

As of June 30, 2015 the fulure m i n i m u m lease payments for the next five years under non-cancelable operating leases
are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30, 2016 $20,323
June 30, 2017 20,323
June 30, 2018 20,323
June 30, 2019 10.162
Thereafter . -

Total minimum lease payments S. 71.131



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOL III CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

J U N E 30, 2015

NOTK 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN

Plan descriptions. The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established effect ive Ju ly 1. 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South Carolina
Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benellts for employees of the stale, its
p u b l i c school distr icts , and pol i t ical subdivisions. The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS). a
cost-sharing mult iple-employer defined benefit pension plan, was established effective Ju ly 1, 1962. pursuant to the
provisions of Section 9-11-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances
and other benefits for police officers and firemen of the state and its pol i t ica l subdivisions.

Membership. Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Generally, all
employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to the system as a condition of
employment. This plan covers general employees, teachers, and indiv iduals newly elected to the South Carolina General
Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general election. An employee member of the system wi th an effective
dale of membership prior lo Ju ly 1. 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective
date of membership on or after July 1. 2012, is a Class I'hree member. To be eligible for the PORS membership, an
employee must be required by the terms of his employment, by election or appointment , to preserve pub l ic order,
protect life and property, and detect crimes in the state; to prevent and control property destruction by fire; or to serve
as a peace officer employed by the Department of Corrections, the Department of J u v e n i l e Just ice, or the Department of
Menial Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect membership in the PORS. Magistrates arc required to participate
in the PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS members, other than magistrates and probate judges, must also earn at
least $2,000 per year and devote at least 1,600 hours per year to work, unless exempted by statute. An employee
member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to J u l y I , 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee
member of ihe system with an effective date of membership on or a f t e r Ju ly 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

Benefits provided. The SCRS and PORS provide retirement, disabi l i ty , l i fe insurance, and death benefits. Key elements
of the benefit ca lcula t ion i n c l u d e the benefit mu l t i p l i e r , years of service, and average f ina l compensation. A SCRS Class
Two member who has separated from service w i th at least five or more years of earned service is e l ig ib le for a month ly
pension at age 65 or w i t h 28 years credited service regardless of age. A member may elect early retirement wi thrcdueed
pension benefits payable at age 55 wi th 25 years of service credit . A SCRS Class Three member who has separated
from service with al least eight or more years of earned service is e l ig ib l e for a monthly pension upon sat isfying the
Rule of 90 requirement. The total of the member's age and the member 's creditable service has lo equal at least 90
years. Both SCRS Class Two and Class 'I'hree members are e l ig ib le lo receive a reduced deferred annui ty at age 60 if
they satisfy the live- or eight-year earned service requirement, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also avai lable
to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit program. The annual
retirement allowance of e l ig ib le retirees or their su rv iv ing annu i t an t s is increased by the lesser of one percent or five
hundred dollars every Ju ly 1 . Only those annu i t an t s in receipt of a benefit on J u l y I of the preceding year arc e l igible to
receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement provisions al age 55 with 25 years of service are
not e l ig ib le for the benefit adjustment u n t i l the second Ju ly I after reaching age 60 or the second J u l y I after the date
they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THK PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

A PORS Class Two member who has separated from service with at least live or more years of earned service is
eligible lor a monthly pension at age 55 or wilh 25 years of service regardless of age. A PORS Class Three member
who has separated from service w i th at least eight or more years of earned service is e l igible for a monthly pension at
age 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of age. Both PORS Class Two and Class Three members are el igible to
receive a deferred annui ty at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service, respectively. An inc iden ta l death benefit
is also avai lable to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit
program. Accidental death benefi ts are also provided upon the death of an active member working for a covered
employer whose death was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred whi le in the performance of duty.

Contributions. Per Ti t le 9 of the SC Code of Laws, contribution requirements of the active employees and the
participating employers arc established and may be amended by PEBA. SCRS Class Two and Class Three members
were required to contribute 8.0 percent of the i r annual pay for the year ended June 30, 2015. PORS Class Two and
Class Three members were required to contribute 8.41 percent of their annual pay for the year ended June 30, 201 5. The
City's contractual ly required contr ibut ion rate for SCRS Class Two and Class Three members for (he year ended June
30. 2015 was 10.75 percent of a n n u a l payroll and 13 .01 percent of annual payrol l for PORS Class Two and Class Three
members, actuarial!}' determined as an amount thai, when combined with employee contributions, is expected lo finance
the eosts ofbenellls earned by employees du r ing the year, w i th an addit ional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
l i a b i l i t y . Also, the City's contractually required cont r ibut ion rate for the incidental death benefit was 0.15 percent of
annual payroll for SCRS Class Two and Class Three members and 0.20 percent of annual payroll for PORS Class Two
and Class Three members. SCRS and PORS contributions to ihe pension plan by the City were $55.918 and $1 10.676,
respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2015. Therefore, total SCRS and PORS contributions to the pension plan by
the City were $166,594 for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2015. the City reported l iab i l i t ies of $818.137 for its proportionate share of the SCRS net pension liabili ty
and $1.202.930 for its proportionate share of the PORS net pension l i a b i l i t y . Therefore, the total SCRS and PORS net
pension l i a b i l i t i e s were $2,02!.067. The SCRS and PORS net pension l i a b i l i t i e s were measured as of June 30, 20i4 ,
and the total pension l i a b i l i t i e s used to calculate the SCRS and PORS net pension l i ab i l i t i e s were determined by an
actuarial v a l u a t i o n as of J u l y ] , 2013. The City's proportion of the SCRS and PORS net pension l i ab i l i t i e s were based
on a projection of the City's long-term share of SCRS and PORS contr ibut ions to the pension plan re la t ive to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarial ly determined. At June 30, 2014, the City's proportion of
SCRS and PORS contributions were 0.0047% and 0.0628%, respectively.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
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JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, ami Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recogni/ed A SCRS pension expense of $57,342 and a PORS pension
expense of $105.242. Therefore, the City reeogni/cd total SCRS and PORS pension expense of $162,584 for the year
ended June 30. 2015. At June 30, 2015. the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions for SCRS and PORS from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
Of Resources

Net difference between expected and
actual experience

Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings

Liberty 's retirement contributions subsequent
to the measurement date

Total

SCRS

$ 23.182

PORS

$ 32,101

10.676

Deferred Inflows
Of Resources

SCRS PORS

68,976 139.188

S139.188

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the current year SCRS contr ibut ion of $55,918 and PORS contribution of $110,676
were reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resul t ing from the City's retirement contributions
made subsequent to the measurement date of June 30. 2014. These wi l l be reeogni/ed as a reduction of the SCRS and
the PORS net pension liabilities for the year ending June 30. 2016. The net difference of ($45,794) between the other
amounts reported as deferred outf lows of resources and deferred inf lows of resources related to pensions for the SCRS
and the net difference of ($107,087) between the other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions for the PORS w i l l be recogni/.ed in pension expense as follows:

Year ending
June 30. 2016
June 30, 2017
June 30. 2018
June 30. 2019
Thereafter

Total

SCRS
(10.073)
(10,073)
(10,073)
(15,575)

PORS
$ (26,472)

(26,472)
(26,472)
(27,671)

S (45.794)



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension l i a b i l i t y in (he Ju ly 1. 2013 actuarial valuat ion was determined us ing the
fol lowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement for the SCRS and the POKS:

SCRS PORS
I n f l a t i o n 2.75 percent 2,75 percent

Salary increases 3.5 percent 4.0 percent

Investment rale of return 7.5 percent, net of pension plan 7.5 percent, net of pension plan
investment expense, i nc lud ing inflat ion investment expense, inc lud ing in f l a t ion

Benefit adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500 Lesser of 1% or $500

Morta l i ty rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortali ty ' fable for Males or Females, as appropriate, with
adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA.

An actuarial experience study w i l l be conducted after the June 30, 2015 annua l valuat ion has been completed. This
study w i l l involve comparing the actuarial assumptions used in the J u l y 1, 2013 va lua t ion to the actual results as well as
mak ing any new estimates and assumptions about the fu tu re as related to pensions,



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for actuarial purposes is based upon the 30 year
capi ta l market outlook al the end of the 2012 third quarter. The actuarial long-term expected rates of return represent
best estimates of ar i thmet ic real rates of return for each major asset class and were developed in coordination wi th the
investment consultant for the Retirement System Investment Commission (RSIC) using a b u i l d i n g block approach,
reflecting observable inflation and interest rate information available in the lixed income markets as well as Consensus
Hconomic forecasts. The actuar ia l long-term assumptions for other asset classes are based on historical results, current
market characteristics, and professional judgment .

Expected
Arithmetic Real Long-Term Expected

Asset__Class Target Allocation Rate of Return Real Rate of Return

Short term

Domestic fixed income

Global fixed income

Global publ ic equity

Global tactical asset allocation

Hedge funds

Private debt

Private equity

Real estate

Commodities

Total Expected Real Return
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes

Total Expected Nominal Return

The total expected nominal return rate of 8.63 percent has been reduced to 7.5 percent in order to be more conservative.

5.0%

13.0

9.0

31.0

10.0

8.0

7.0

9.0

5.0

.3,0

100.0%
L'S

•n

0.9%

7.4

4.9

7.8

5.1

4.0

10.2

10.2

5.9

5 . 1

0.03%

0.26

0.27

2.42

0.51

0.32

0.71

0.92

0.29

0.15

5.88%
2.75

8.63%



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Discount rale. The discount rate used to measure the total pension l iabil i t ies for the SCRS and the PORS was 1.5
percent. The projection of cash Hows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contr ibut ions from participating
employers in the SCRS and the PORS will be made based on (he actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the
South Carolina State Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, (he pension plans' fiduciary net positions were
projected to be avai lable to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension l i a b i l i t i e s for the SCRS and the PORS.

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liabilities to changes in the discount rate. The following
table presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension l i ab i l i t i e s for the SCRS and PORS calculated using (he
discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension l i a b i l i t i e s for the SCRS
and the PORS would be if i t were calculated using a discount rate that is l-pcrccntage- point lower (6.50%) or 1-
percentuge-point higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate:

Liberty's proportionate share of
the SCRS net pension liability

1%
Decrease
(6.50%)

Current
Discount

Rate
(7.50%)

1 «//o
Increase
(8.50%)

$1,058,720 $ 818?137 $ 617,422

Liberty's proportionate share of
the PORS net pension l i a b i l i t y $1,681,064 $1,202,930 $ 807,315

Total S2t02lr067 jjj.424,737

Pension plans' fiduciary net positions. Detailed informat ion about (he pension plans" fiduciary net positions is ava i lab le
in the separately issued comprehensive annua l financial report (CAFR) containing f inancia l statements and required
supplementary information for the SCRS and the PORS, The CAFR. of the Pension Trust Funds is publicly available on
PLBA's Retirement Benefits' website at www.retiremenl.sc.gov. or a copy may be obtained by submi t t ing a request to
PLBA. PO Box 1 1960, Columbia, SC 2921 1-1960.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 9- DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The City employees may participate in the 457, and/or 401 (k) deferred compensation plans available to state and local
governmental employees through the state public employee retirement system. These programs arc administered by a
state approved nongovernmental third party. There are no employer contributions made by the City to these plans.

NOTE 10- ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

During the current fiscal year, the City provided service to approximately 1,400 water customers. However, the City did
not receive a substantial percentage of its operating revenue from any single water customer.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City carries commercial insurance through the Slate of South Carolina Mun ic ipa l Insurance Risk Finance Fund for
its general l i ab i l i t y insurance and through the South Carolina Municipal Insurance Trust for its workers" compensation
insurance. The City pays annua l premiums for these coverages. Settled claims result ing from these risks have not
exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

We have evaluated all subsequent events through November 30, 2015. Per the City, as of this date, there have not been
any subsequent events that should have had an effect on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

NOTE 13 - POST-EMPLOYMENT COST AND ACCRUED POST-EMPLOYMENT COST LIABILITIES
OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The City has adopted GASB Statement 45. The statement improves the relevance and usefulness of f inancial reporting
by (a) requiring systematic, accrual basis measurement and recognition of post-employment cost (expense) other than
pensions over a period that approximates employees' years of service and (b) providing information about actuarial
accrued l iabi l i t ies associated with other post-employment benefits and whether and to what extent progress is being
made in funding the plan.

As of June 30, 2015 the City does not have any post-employment cost nor any accrued l iab i l i t i es associated with post-
employment benefits other than pensions.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 14 - SC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY GRANT

The City of Liberty received a grant reimbursement in the amount of $14.849 from the SC Department of Publ ic Safety
lor the year ended June 30, 2015. This grant re imbursement was lor printers, cables, scanners, and cameras for the
police vehicles as well as for mounts for laptops used in the police vehicles. Prior to receiving the grant reimbursement,
the City had expended $3.174 on eight printers and cables. $3,032 on eight scanners, $7,088 on eight cameras, and
$3,041 on eight mounts for the laptops. Therefore, the total cost of the equipment was $16.335. This equipment was
purchased for the police vehicles in an effort to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Police Department by
decreasing the time to enter c r imina l data, to prepare related reports, and to search or update cr iminal records.
Specifically, the printers enabled the police officers to print out tickets and any prior incident reports at the crime scene.
The scanners enhanced the accuracy and up to date information on drivers' licenses. Lastly, the mounts allowed the
police officers to be able to enter the data on their laptops.

NOTE 15 - SC MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST GRANT

The City of Liberty received a total of $1,040 in grant reimbursements from the SC Munic ipa l Insurance Trust for the
year ended June 30, 2015. These reimbursements were for the purchase of name plates, tactical pants, tactical shirts,
vest carriers, and back patches for the Police Department. The total cost to the City was $2,080.

NOTE 16 - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

The City received grant reimbursements from the South Carol ina Department of Commerce for sewer upgrades
performed on Commerce Street in Liberty's downtown area lor the year ended June 30. 2015. These grant
reimbursements were received for invoices submitted to the City by Payne, McGinn , and Cummins at completion of
various stages of the project. Also, one of the grant reimbursements was. for an invoice submitted to the City by the SC
Appalachian Council of Governments for the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e costs associated wi th the project. The City received total
grant reimbursements of $60.128 from the South Carolina Department of Commerce for the year ended June 30, 201 5.
Furthermore, additional grant reimbursements of $40,053 were accrued that the City received after June 30, 201 5 for
current year grant expenses. Therefore, total current year grant reimbursements were $100,1 81. The City spent
$213.059 of its own funds for the sewer upgrades performed. The sewer upgrades were completed by June 30, 2015.
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CITY OK LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 18 - PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The City adopted the (i/iSB Stak'incnl No, 6<S', "Accounting and j-'inuticial Reporting /or Pensions, for the year ended
J u n e 30. 2015 . Under th i s statement, employers arc required to report a prior-period adjustment U> ihe beginning net
position balance lor \ \ha t the balance wou ld have been had the statement been implemented in the year prior to the
Cit \ \  current > ear-end. Specif ic-al ls , the beginning net position should be adjusted for the cmpkner 's proportionate
share of the net pension l i a b i l i t y for the prior year; any retirement cont r ibu t ions made by the employer in the prior year;
and any other deferred outflows and deferred inflows ofresourees. if determinable at implementa t ion of the statement,
l-'or the year ended June 30. 2015, the City of Libert) reported a total prior-period adjustment of ($2,01 1 , 3 7 1 ) to the
beginning net position balance in the statement of net position for the governmental and business-l \pe ac t i v i t i e s . Th i s
prior-period adjustment included the City's proportionate share of the SCKS and I'ORS net pension l i a b i l i t i e s in the
amounts of $852,339 and $1,301.861. respectively. This prior-period adjustment also inc luded the retirement
con t r ibu t ions made b\e Cil\r the SCKS and the I'ORS in the amounts of $45.731 and $97.098. respectively, for
the \ear ended June 30. 2014. I h e beg inning net position balance was not adjusted for any other deferred outf lows of
resources or deferred in f lows ofresourees because they were not determinable al the implementa t ion of the stalemenl.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR IHK FISCAL YEAR ENDED J U N K 30, 2015

TAXES:
ProperU
Vehicle
Delinquent
Manufacturer's
Local option sales tax
Merchant inventory
Homestead
I losp i ta l i ty tax
I ' l l - '
Broker

PERMITS AND FEES:
Business l icense
Franchise tees
Yard sale lees
Building and miscellaneous permits
Police fingerprint fees
Llection I'ees

FINES AND FOKFE11 URES:
Police lines

SHARED REVENUES:
Fire district contract
Local iio\ermiients

BUDGE*!
ORIGINAL

S 280,000

30.000
20,000

-

249.000
6,600

53,000
65.000

120,000
. 2 1 1 ,000

1,034,600

95.000
260.900

300
8.000

-

_ ...200

364,400

1 50,000

150,000

208.000
60000

Kl) AMOUNTS

K1NAL

S 280.000
30,000
20.000

-

249,000
6,600

53,000
65,000

120,000
2J.UO.OO

1,034,600

95,000
260.900

300
8,000

-

..... 200

364,400

.. .150,000

150,000

208.000
60,000

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

$ 27-1,993
53.814
25,129

8,014
274,622

6,648
50.291
81,592

101.437
_226,80J_

1,103,341

96.472
289,405

182

2.853
39

.-

388,951

_.!7JL592

173,592

170.000
71.555

VARIANCK WITH
FINAL BUDCKT

POSITIVE (NKGATIVK)

S (5.007)
23,814

5,129
8,014

25,622
48

(2.709)
16,592

(18,563)
.._.I5,80I

68,741

1.472
28.505

( M 8 )
(5.147)

39

(.200)

24,551

.._ 23^592

23,592

(38.000)
1 1,555

268,000 268,000 241.555 (26.445)

MISCELLANEOUS:
Recyclables
l:ire Department \-u Funds
Pickens Dispatch
School Resource Officer (mint
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous Insurance Payments
S. (.'. I lousing Authority

34,000
12.600
36,000
71,000

-
-

5.500

34,000
12,600
36,000
71.000

-
-

5,500

29, 1 82
14.058
36.000
71,000
2.566
5.140
5.1 14

(4.818)
1,458

-
-

2,566
5.140
(386)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR KNDED JUNE 30, 2015

BUDGETED AMOUNTS
O R I G I N A L UNA!.

MISCELLANEOUS (CONTINUED):
SCMIT Grant
SC Department of Publ ic Safety Grant
Count) I-'ire Calls
Fire District Reimbursement
Rosewood Renta l Income
Cell lower Rent
I-'ire l- 'und Raiser
Returned Check l-'ees
Sale of Vehic le
Donations
Police Bond Eschealmenl
Confiscated Drug Income
Sale of f-Shirts
Rec Sale of Spirit Cups
Rec Sponsor Banners
Sale of Stadium Signs
Team Sponsorships
P u b l i c Works Sale of Kecyclables
Capital Leases

CHAIU;KS KOK SERVICES:
Sanitat ion user fees
R e c y c l i n g income
Recreation Department a th le t i c fees
Recreation Department concessions
Recreation Department rentals
Recreation Department miscel laneous
Juveni le Facil i ty

-
-

25,000
-

5,000
10.560
5,000
100
.

3.000
-
,

500
2.000
2.000
5.000
5.000
1 ,000

,

223,260

-
-

25.000
-

5.000
10.560
5.000
100

-
3.000

-
-

500
2,000
2,000
5,000
5.000
1.000

.

223,260

1,040
14,849
25,000
30,636
5,015
10.560
1,938

50
880

10,050
750

3,339
-
-

3,300
750

-
-

167,883

439,100

122,000

60,000
55,000

3.000
1,100

_. 20,000

261.100

22,000

60.000
55.000

3,000
1. 100

261.100

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

1,040
1-4,849
25,000
30,636

5,015
10.560

1,938
50

880
10,050

750
3,339

-
-

3,300
750

-
-

167,883

439,100

150,716
14,800
37.614
58.933

1,220
2,219

13,150

278,652

V A R I A N C E WITH
F I N A I , BUDGET

POSITIVE ( N E G A T I V E !

1 .040
14,849

-
30,636

15
-

(3.062)
(50)
880

7,050
750

3.339
(500)

(2.000)
1,300

(4,250)
(5.000)
( 1 .000)

. 167.883

215,840

28.716
14,800

(22.386)
3,933

(1.780)
1 . 1 1 9

(6,850)

17,552

TOTALS $2,625,121
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

BUDGETED AMOUNTS
ORIGINAL

ADMINISTRATION:
Salaries and wages - regular $
Salaries and wages- council
Salaries and wages - overtime
Unemployment
Admin contract labor
Admin heal th/ l i fe insurance
Payroll taxes
Pension
Workers' compensation/liability insurance
Legal and accounting
Maintenance and service contracts
Admin b u i l d i n g repairs
Telephone
Postage
Department office supplies/printing
Seminars, conventions, and meetings
Utilities
Dues and subscriptions
Medical services
Admin website design
Holiday and festival expense
Contributions
Senior citizens contribution
Debt service principal
Debt service interest
Capital outlays
Legion Hut expense
Railroad lease
Landscape maintenance
Bui ld ing permit inspection expense
Planning and zoning
Office furniture and equipment
Community development program
Rosewood expenses
Rosewood capital purchases
Janitorial supplies
Ordinance recodification
Bank charges
Vehicle expense
Miscellaneous
Ecivis Grant Network

Total Administration

72,950
16,200

-
-
-

53,350
7,000
8,500

24,300
15,000
9,850

-
3,600
2,000
1,500
1,000

13,500
2,500

100
-

7,000
1 ,000
1,500

46,000
5,500

-
-
9
-

13,000
500

1,000
-

12,500
45,000

2,800
6,500
1,500

-
-

900

376,059

FINAL

$ 72,950
16,200

-
-
-

53,350
7,000
8,500

24,300
15,000
9.850

-
3,600
2,000
1,500
1,000

13,500
2,500

100
-

7,000
1,000
1,500

46,000
5,500

-
-
9
-

13,000
500

1,000
-

12,500
45,000

2,800
6,500
1,500

-
-

900

376,059

VARIANCE WITH
ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET

AMOUNTS POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)

$ 82,547
23,700

36
6.381

80
68,172

8,218
10,805
15,626
11,474
14.899
4,627
4,591
2,139

14,615
1,288

23,904
3,989

175
2,214

18,272
3,099

121
47,178

3,712
11,270

433
-

941
14,820

10
4,471

19.373
-
-

223
-

4,623
657
572

-

429,255

$ (9,597)
(7,500)

(36)
(6,381)

(80)
(14,822)

(1,218)
(2,305)
8,674
3,526

(5,049)
(4,627)

(991)
(139)

(13,115)
(288)

(10,404)
(1,489)

(75)
(2,214)

(11,272)
(2,099)
1,379

(1 ,178)
1,788

(11 ,270)
(433)

9
(941)

(1,820)
490

(3,471)
(19,373)

12,500
45,000

2,577
6,500

(3,123)
(657)
(572)
900

(53,196)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

POLICE DKPARTMKNT:
Salaries and \\ages regular
Salaries and wages overtime
Salaries and wages m u n i e i p a l judge
Pa \ ro l l taxes
Workers' compensat ion insurance
Drug tes t ing
Pension
Judge
Jury
Office furmturc and equipment
Un i forms
Police grant wri t ing and ivsearch
Main tenance and service contracts
Computer expenses
Maintenance and repairs to b u i l d i n g s
Vehic le expense
'I clephonc
Department office supplies p r i n t i n g
Seminars, convent ions , and meetings
Dues and subscr ip t ions
Medical
J u v e n i l e center expenses
Shared tines state
Victims' rights
Drug fund expense
Debt service pr inc ipa l
Debt service interest
Capital outlays

1 asers. radar, etc.
Prisoner expense
Postage
Contr ibut ions
Training
Medical t reatment of prisoners
Police Depl lech upgrade
Canine-
Supplies
Judge's expenses

Tolul Police Department

ORIGINAL

484.729
6.000
12,400
37.748
1 1,500

700
63,725

1,000
500

4,000

7.000
3.800
500

39.500
6.000
2.000

500
700

3.000
60,000
8,500
1 ,000

1 9.000
1.000

2.000
2,000
600
500

1.500
500

1,000
1 ,000
2,000
600

786,502

1-INAL

-184,729
6.000
12,400
37.748
1 1.500
700

63.725

1,000
500

4,000

7,000
3,800
500

39.500
6.000
2.000

500
700

3.000
60.000
8.500
1 ,000
19.000

1 .000

2.000
2.000
600
500

1,500
500

1.000
1.000
2,000
600

786.502

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

506,679
5.789
7.968

37.621
13.547

675
67,319

1.833

7.644
5,330

250
7,780
3,123

388
35.121

4.587
7 .181

13
390
327

1,281
86,916

2,169
216

24.643
644

48.312
2.779
2,496

651
574

5,328

,866

891.440

V A R I A N C E WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE ( N E G A T I V E )

(21,950)
21 1

4,432
127

(2,047)
25

(3,594)
(1.833)
1.000
(7.144)
(1,330)
(250)
(780)
677
I 12

4.379
1.413

(5.181)
(13)
1 10
373

1,719
(26,916)
6.331
7S4

(5.643)
356

(48.312)
(779)
(496)

(5M
(74)

(3.828)
500

1,000
1,000
134
600

(104,938)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AM) ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED J U N E 30, 2015

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

FIRE DEPARTMENT:
Salaries and wages - regular
Salaries and wages- pt
Salaries and wages overtime
Salaries and wages retention
Salaries and wages volunteer
Payroll taxes
Pension
Workers1 compensation insurance
Drug testing
Uniforms
Maintenance and service contracts
Vehicle expense
Telephone
Department office supp l ies /p r in t ing
Seminars, conventions, and meetings
U t i l i t i e s
Dues and subscriptions
Medical
1% expense
Fire prevention
Fund rais ing
Capital outlays
Rescue equipment
Postage
Training
Training meals
Repairs
Supplies
Physicals
Radios, walkies , and turnouts
Office furn i tu re and equipment
Hxpenses funded by county
Kxplorers

Total Fire Department

O R I G I N A L

236,062
60,000
30,000
22,000
30,000
27,150
35,000

7,300
400

6.000
3,500

13.739
5,800

500
3,000

1 ,500
1 ,000
4,500

16,605
1,000
1,000

-
2,000

100
2,000
1,500
3,000
3,000
3,000

10,000
2.000
2.500
1,000

536, 1 56

K I M A L

236,062
60,000
30,000
22,000
30,000
27,150
35,000

7,300
400

6,000
3.500

13.739
5.800

500
3.000
1 .500
1 .000
4,500

1 6,605
1 ,000
1,000

-
2,000

100
2,000
1,500
3,000
3,000
3,000

10,000
2,000
2,500
1.000

536, 1 56

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

249,202
6 1 ,604
30,523
21,804
29,762
28,586
43,357

9,771
210

7,328
2,490

18,587
5.569
3,574
2.674
1 .734

210
1,407

14,359
-

5,347
3,422

520
47

2,317
1,295
2,735
3,476
2,536
8,802

940
2,332

666

567,186

V A R I A N C E WITH
K I N A L BUDGET

POSITIVE (NEGATIVE)

(13 ,140)
(1,604)

(523)
196
238

(1,436)
(8,357)
(2,471)

190
(L328)

1.010
(4,848)

231
(3,074)

326
(234)
790

3,093
2,246
1,000

(4,347)
(3,422)

1,480
53

(317)
205
265

(476)
464

1,198
1,060

168
334

(31.030)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PUBLIC WORKS:

Salaries and wages regular
Salaries and wages recycling
Salaries and wages overtime
Salaries and wages recycling overtime
Payroll taxes
Payroll taxes - recycling
Drug testing
Workers' compensation insurance
Pension

Pension - recycling

Uniforms
Uniforms - recycling
Recycling expense
Maintenance and repairs
Vehicle expense

Vehicle expense - recycling
Telephone expense
Telephone expense - recycling
Department office supplies. printing

Dues and memberships
Utilit ies

Medical
Asphalt, concrete, gravel

Small hand tools

Capital outlays
Recycling bins

Cleaning supplies
Shop supplies
Leaf bags

Lawn equipment

County waste fee

Building removal

Animal control

Recycle dues, memberships

Recycle siation

Debt service principal

Debt service interest

BUDGETED
ORIGINAL

77,000
26,522

3,000

1 ,000
6.000

2.300

-
5,000

8,000

2.942

1,500
400

-
3,500

40,000

20,000

500
600

-
-

63.000

-

2,000
-

16,891

1.000
2,000

4,300

2,000

4,000

14.700

-
-

200
1,500

-
-

AMOUNTS
FINAL

77,000
26,522

3,000

1 ,000
6.000

2.300

-
5.000

8,000

2,942

1,500
400

-
3,500

40,000

20,000

500
600

-
-

63,000
-

2,000

-
16,891

1 ,000

2,000

4,300

2.000

4,000

14.700

-
-

200
1,500

-
-

Total Public Works 309.855 309,855

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

71,152

28,827
3,438
2,277
5,696

2 ,1 16
240

5.543
9,124
2,646

4,034

15
2.178
7,429

28,337
20,014

503
463

45
72,608

130
3.142

297
141.306

2.1 16
637

4,758
1,898
2,360

14.630
3.966

1,025

145

16,067
823

459.985

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE (NE GAT IVE )

5,848
(2.305)

(438)
(1 ,277)

304
184

(240)
(543)

( 1 , 1 2 4 )
296

(2,534)
385

(2,178)
(3,929)
1 1,663

(14)
500

97
(463)
(45)

(9,608)
(130)

(IJ42)
(297)

(124,415)
(1.M6)
1,363
(458)
102

1,640
70

(3,966)
(1,025)

55
1,500

(16,067)
(823)

(150,130)
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

RKCREATION DEPARTMENT:
Salaries and wages regular
Salaries and wages - overtime
Payroll taxes
Pension
Drug testing
Workers" compensation insurance
Maintenance and repairs
Vehic le expense
Uni fo rms and accessories
Telephone
Department office suppl ies
Recreation supplies
Utili t ies
Concession expense
l-'ield and gym maintenance
Concession stand expense
'Team equipment and supplies
Referees, officials
Insurance, participants
Program expenses
Light replacements
f ield maintenance
Trophies, banquets
Safety code update
Postage
Landscape maintenance
Donations
I loliday expenses
Capital outlays
Background checks
Inmate Meals
fund raising
Mower gas and repairs
'Travel
f qu ipmcnt rental
Credit card mach ine expense

Total Recreation Department

BLIX.hl
ORIGINAL

103.369

2,000

7.000

8.500

-
1,050

6,000
5.000

24,000

2,500

4,000

1 .000
28.500

1 9,000

5,000

850
8,500

24,500

3,100
3,500

500
5,000

3,000

3,000

200
5,000

200
500

-

-
-
-

1 ,500
-
-

_ -

ED AMOUNTS
FINAL

103,369

2,000
7,000
8,500

-
1,050
6,000

5,000

24,000

2,500

4.000

1,000
28.500
19.000
5,000

850

8,500

24,500

3,100
3,500

500
5,000

3.000

3,000

200
5,000

200

500
-

-
-
-

1.500
-
-
-

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

125,334

9,879

9,435

13,771

1,540
9,369

1 1,222

6.963

27,276

1,808
3.586

724
44,742

26,465

6,878

2,060

5 . 1 3 1

29,105

2,924

6.344

137
1,641
3,181

750
56

5,376

61
99

17,128

15
237

29
-

1,000
606

.568

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET

POSITIVE {NEGATIVE)

(21,965)

(7,879)

(2,435)

(5,271)

(1,540)

(8,319)

(5,222)
(1.963)

(3.276)

692
414
276

(16,242)

(7,465)

(1,878)

(1.210)

3.369

(4,605)

176
(2.844)

363
3,359

(181)
2,250

144
(376)

139
401

(17,128)

(15)
(237)

(29)
1,500

(1,000)

(606)
1?68J

276,269 276,269 375,440 (99 ,171)

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL
EXPENDITURES S2r723T3U6
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARES

OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITIES
SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (SCRS)
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PORS)

06/30/14

City of Liberty's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)

City of Liberty's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

City of Liberty's covcrcd-cmploycc payroll

City of Liberty's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage,
of its eovered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability

SCRS

0.004752%

$ 8 1 8 , 1 3 7

$ 424,794

192.60%

59.9%

PORS

0.06284%

$1.202,930

$ 791,672

151.95%

67.5%

Sec the notes to the required supplementary information.



CITY OF LIBERTY
SCHEDULE OF PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (SCRS) AND
POLICE OFFICERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PORS)

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

06/30/15 06/30/14 06/30/13 06/30/12 06/30/1 1 06/30/10 06/30/09 06/30/08 06/30/07 06/30/06
SCRS actuarial!) determined
contributions S 55.918 S 44.391 $ 47.814 $ 48.077 $ 49.005 $ 49.501 S 46.947 $ 42.938 $ 35.081 S 29.847

PORS actuarially determined
contributions " 110.676 98.484 92.213 94.031 86.689 84.232 85.383 78.048 70.64 1 71,794

Total SCRS and PORS actuarially
determined contributions i.. .166,594 S__!42J|7S $_140,Q27 $ 142J08 1_ 13. 5,694 l_13_3f_731 S.JS^IQ S 120.986 S_JQ5,722 $.._.] 0164.

SCRS and PORS contributions in
relation to the actuarially determined
contributions " _ (166.594) (142.875) (140.027) (142.108) (135.694) (133.733) (132.330) (120.986) (105.722) (101.641)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ . _ _ - S ______ : S $ __ _; S __ _ .___: S_^_ ____ , __: $_ ______ _^ 3L_. ._ - S. - $ _.-

SCRS covered-employee payroll S 520.167 S 424.794 $ 457.550 $ 512,002 S 530.357 $ 535.725 S 508.084 $ 473,929 S 530.746 $ 445.478

PORS covered-employee payroll 850.699 791.672 774.899 827.738 778.877 790.911 801.718 757.748 685.835 697.029

Total SCRS and PORS covered-
employee payroll SI,370,866 $ 12L6_,4_66 $1.232.449 iL339,7_40 1UP_9^234 SK326,636 S_UQM02 SI.231.677 1L21A5JL1 11,142,507.

SCRS contributions as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 10.75% 10.45% 10.45% 9.39% 9.24% 9.24% 9.24% 9.06% 6.61% 6.70%

PORS contributions as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 13.01% 12.44% 11.90% 11.36% 11.13% 10.65% 10.65% 10.30% 10.30% 10.30%

See the notes to the required supplementary information.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SCHEDULES

JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - PROPORTIONATE SHARE OE THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

GASH Statement No. 68 requires that a Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension L iab i l i t y be presented for each
cost-sharing pension plan for the last ten years. Specifically, t h i s schedule should present the fo l lowing information for
each year: the employer's proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the employer's proportionate
share (amount ) of the col lect ive net pension l i a b i l i t y , the employer's covered-employee payroll , the employer's
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension l i a b i l i t y as a percentage of the employer's covered-employee
payroll, and the pension plan 's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension l i a b i l i t y . I lowcver, u n t i l a f u l l
10-year schedule is avai lable, only the year(s) for which the information is avai lable should be presented in the
schedule. This information was only avai lable for the year ended June 30, 2014.

NOTE 2 - PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS

GASB statement No. 68 requires that a Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions be presented for the last ten years if the
contr ibut ion requirements of the employer are s tututori ly or contractual ly established. Specif ical ly , the Schedule of
Cont r ibu t ions Is to present the fol lowing information for the last ten years: the stalulorily or conlractually required
employer cont r ibut ions , the amount of contr ibut ions reeogni/ed by the pension plan in relation to the staUitorily or
contractually required employer contr ibutions, the difference between the stalulorily or conlractually required employer
contr ibutions and the amount of contr ibut ions rccogni/ed by the pension plan in relation to thc staUitorily or
contractual ly required amount, the employer's covered-employee payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized
by the pension plan in relation to the staUitorily or conlractually required employer eontributions as a percentage of the
employer's covered-employee payroll. This informat ion has been presented in the Schedule of Contributions for the
years ended June 30, 2006. June 30. 2007. June 30, 2008. June 30, 2009, June 30, 2010, June 30, 201 1, June 30. 2012,
June 30, 2013, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2015.

NOTE 3 - METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS USED IN CALCULATIONS OF ACTUARILLY DETERMINED
CONTRIBUTIONS

The ac tuar ia l ly determined con t r ibu t ion rates in the schedule of contr ibut ions are calculated as of June 30, 2014, one
year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which con t r ibu t ions are reported. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
to determine the contractually required contr ibut ions for the year ended June 30, 201 5 reported in that schedule can be
found in Note 8 of the basic financial statements.

-53-



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS, AND SURCHARGES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Collected by

City

Retained by

City Treasurer

Remitted to

State Treasurer

Allocated to
Victims'

Assistance

I ' i lies

Assessments

Surcharges

Hxpentlilures

Balance, beg inn ing of year

$78,071

$66,140

$30,272

$78,071

$ 7,224 $58,916

$ 2,272 $28,000

$ 7.224

2,272

(1,048)

13,638

Balance, end of year
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVKR F I N A N C I A L REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCK AND OTIIKR MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the I lonorahle Mayor and Members of the City Council
Ci tv (if l . i be r t> . South Carolina

We h a \  audi ted , in accordance w i t h the a u d i t i n g standards generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America and the
standards app l i cab le to financial aud i t s contained in (iovenwivm Auditing Standards issued by the Comptrol ler General
of the U n i t e d States, the f inancia l statements of the governmental act ivi t ies , the business-t>pe a c t i v i t i e s , each major
fund, and the aggregate r ema in ing fund in fo rmat ion of the City of Liberty, South Carolina as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, w h i c h co l lec t ive! ) comprise the Cil \f Libert) . South
Carolina's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 201 5.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In p l a n n i n g and performing our aud i t of the financial statements. \ \  considered the Cit\f Libert) , South Carolina 's
i n t e r n a l control over f inancial report ing ( i n t e r n a l cont ro l ) to determine the a u d i t procedures tha t are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Libert). South Carolina's internal control. According!), we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Ci tv of Libert)1. South Carol ina 's in ternal control .

Our consideration of internal control was for the l imi ted purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to i d e n t i f y a l l deficiencies in in te rna l control that might be material weaknesses or s ign i f ican t def ic iencies and
therefore, mater ia l weaknesses or s ignif icant deficiencies mav exist that were not identif ied. However, as described in
the accompanying schedule of findings, we ident i f ied certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses and s igni f icant deficiencies.

A deficiency in inlenuil control exists w h e n the design or operation of a control does not a l low management or
employees, in the normal course of performing the i r assigned functions, to prevent, or delect and correct, misstatements
on a t ime!) basis. A material weakness is a def ic iency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such tha t
there is a reasonable poss ib i l i lv tha t a m a t e r i a l misstatement of the ent i ty ' s financial statements w i l l not be presented,
or detected and corrected on a t ime l> basis. We consider the deficiencies 2015-1 through 2012-3 described in the
accompanying schedule of findings to be mater ial weaknesses.



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of Citv Council
City o f l . iber ty
Page 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combinat ion of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies 201 5-4 through 201 5-1 5 described in the accompany schedule of f ind ings to be s ignif icant deficiencies

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obta in ing reasonable assurance about whether the City of Liberty, South Carolina 's f i n a n c i a l statements are
free from mater ia l misstatcmenl. \\ performed tests of its compliance wi th certain provis ions of laws, regulat ions,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance wi th which could have a direct and material e f f e c t on the de terminat ion
of f inanc ia l statement amounts. Ho\\e\er, providing an opinion on compliance \ \ i t h those provis ions was not an
ob jec t ive of our audi t , and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances
of noncompliance or other matters thai are required to be reported under (iovfnnnenf Auditing Standards and w h i c h are
described in the accompanying schedule of f indings as items 2015-16 through 2015-26.

City of Liberty, South Carolina's Response to Findings

The City of Liberty, South Carolina's response lo the f indings identified in our audi t is deseribed in the accompanying
schedule of response to findings. The City of Liberty. South Carolina's response were not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audi t of the f inanc ia l statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Curry . P.A.

Lasley. South Carolina
November 30, 2015



CITY OF LIBKRTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

2015- 1 The accounting personnel lack the formali/ed knowledge and training to prepare the financial statements in
accordance w i t h general]) accepted account ing pr inciples . This is a mater ia l weakness.

2015- 2 There is only m i n i m u m oversight from the Mayor and Council over the effectiveness of the in ternal control
procedures of the Ci ts . This is a material weakness.

2015- 3 The Ci ty ' s Masor and Council provide m i n i m u m oversight over the City's f inancia l accounting records.This
is a material weakness.

2015- 4 In some instances the City's accounting personnel both bill the revenue and process the revenue (accounts
receivable) payments. Also, in some instances the City 's accounting personnel both sign the checks and
prepare the bank reconcil iat ions. Therefore, at t imes there is a lack of segregation of duties in accounting.

2 0 1 5 - 5 Three check requests svere approved by the same person who made the request. Two of the requests were
made and approved by an employee in the Recreation Department for c leaning supplies and a website for the
City, and one request was made and approved by an employee in the Police Department for a t r ip to the
Greenvi l le County Recreation Department for the Dare Camp.

201 5- 6 Two petty cash reimbursement requests were not approved. One request was made by an employee in the
A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Department for a decorative pumpk in for Cits Hal l , and one request was made by an employee
in the Recreation Department for decor for the Mayor's office.

2015- 7 A petty cash reimbursement request was not completed by one employee in the Water Department for postage
to ship another Water Department employee's hand held meter to Lexington. KY for repair.

2015- 8 There were a number of transactions that weren' t recorded at year end that were June 30. 2015 transactions.
These transact ions/adjustments svere made through the course of the audi t to bring the f inancia l records to the
accrual basis of accounting.

2015- 9 A number of revenue and expense transactions were recorded in the wrong general ledger accounts. These
misposlings svere corrected dur ing the course of the audi t .

2015-10 Several payroll errors were ident i f ied dur ing the course of the audi t . One employee in the Water Department
was underpaid for the pas roll period ended September 6. 2014, and two employees in the Police Department
svere underpaid for the payroll periods ended J u l y 13. 2014 and November 15. 2014. Also, one employee in the
Water Department was overpaid for the payroll period ended J u l y 1 3, 2014. and one employee in the
Recreation Department was overpaid for the payroll period ended October 4. 2014. Furthermore, one
employee in the A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Department received a dupl ica te payment l o r t h c pas ro l l period ended October
4. 2014. This amount was repaid by the emplosee dur ing the current scar. Moreover, one emplosee in the
Recreat ion Department was erroneously paid for sick l ime for the pay ro l l period ended October 4, 2014.
Last ly, one emplosee in the Water Department was overpaid for the pasrol l period ended J u l y 13. 2014. and
another employee in the Reese I ing Department svas overpaid for the payrol l periods ended J u l y 13, 2014 and
October 4. 2014. However, the ove rpayment s were deducted trom the employees' paychecks in the fol low ing
payrol l periods.
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OK FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

2 0 1 5 - 1 1 Invoice documentat ion was not submit ted for thir ty-three First Citizens credit card charges total ing $1.208.
One credit card charge was for a meal lor the l :ire Department in the amount of $25. The Recreation
Department made three credit card charges to Ingles, (-red's, and Dollar General total ing $29. A memo was
ident i f ied tha t staled that the charges \\ere for a yard sale held b\e C i t v . However, there is no
documenta t ion showing what was purchased specifically. Another credit card charge was made by the Publ ic
Works Department for shovel and hammer handles in the amount of $50. Also, a credit card charge was made
by the Water Department at a convenience store for an un iden t i f i ed purchase in the amount of $6. There was
no memo in explanation of the charge, 'flic remaining twenty-seven credit card charges were made by the
Admin i s t r a t ive Deparlmenl in the total amount of $1,098. Out of those twenty-seven credit card charges, eight
charges were for various meals and other food i tems to ta l ing $207; two charges were for fuel to ta l ing $45;
another charge was for office suppl ies in the amount of $56; and the other sixteen charges total ing $790 could
nol be ident i f ied speci f ica l ly as to wha t the\. These sixteen charges \\ere made to Ingles. CVS
Pharmacy. Publ ix . Walmart , and SQ 1 4 1 West I.I.C. According to the memos ident i f ied for some of these
charges, the purchases were for hol iday expenses, office supplies, a Chris tmas dinner, supplies for a counci l
meeting, and a communi ty clean up. Again, there was no documentat ion showing what was specifically
purchased.

2015-12 l -our non-credit card purchases made by the Recreation Department were not supported by invoice
documentation. These purchases were for food for the banquets held by the Recreation Department. The total
ol the purchases was $190.

2015-13 R e v i e w s of the fixed assets used by the Public Works, Water, and Recreation Departments were not performed
frequently. Also, when the reviews were performed, they were done by the same person who was responsible
for purchasing the fixed assets. Therefore, there is a lack of segregation of dut ies as \ \ e l l .

201 5-14 Monthly reconciliations of the athlet ic fees were not performed b\e Recreation Department.

2 0 1 5 - 1 5 The C ' i t v ' s \ \aler b i l l i n g system ca lcu la ted several water customers' b i l l i n g s incorrectly for October 2014. The
\ \aler b i l l i n g system bil led the water customers at the m i n i m u m rate instead of at the rate in accordance w i t h
the number of gallons used b\h customer. Based on conversations w i t h the Water Department Clerk, the
water b i l l i n g system frequently makes errors that have to be corrected manua l l y .

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

2015- 16 A number of personal charges were identif ied on the City's f i rs t Cili/ens and Sam's credit cards dur ing the
course of the audi t tolal i im $13.102. These amounts were all repaid to the City during the current year .
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CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS (CONTINUED)

201 5- I 7 Two checks were wri t ten for which substant ia t ion was not provided to the City. One check was wr i t t en in the
amount of $600 to be used lo purchase a te levis ion for a danee class held at the Rosewood Center. Another
check was wri t ten in the amount of $1.000 for travel expenses incurred. However, invoices were not provided
lo substant ia te the amounts.

HO 1 5-18 A check wr i t t en to petty cash was cashed in order to have change funds for the Liberty Festival . I lowever, no
evidence was found thai th i s money was redeposited back into the City 's bank account.

2 0 1 5 - i y Several employees in the Fire. Police, and Admin i s t r a t i ve Departments received cell phone upgrades dur ing the
current year that were paid by the Ci ty .

2015-20 One vendor's November 2014 hosp i ta l i ty tax payment was misplaced. This resulted in the vendor having lo make
the pa> ment again to the C i t \

2015-21 T\\ vendors did not pay the correct amount of hospi ta l i ty tax for March 2015. One vendor underpaid, and the
other vendor overpaid.

2015-22 Registration fees were paid in Apr i l 2015 for the attendance of t ra in ing seminars by the Adminis t ra te
Department. I lowever. no one attended the t r a i n i n g seminars.

2015-23 The City w i t h h e l d ret irement con t r ibu t ions at the SC'RS member rale instead of at the PORS rate for one
employee in the Fire Department.

2015-24 Three expenditures were inappropriately made out of the I ' l l bank account. One expenditure was for the
demoli t ion of an old house located in Liberty, and the other two expenditures were for the repair of the door at
the Rosewood Center.

201 5-25 Proof of gross receipts was not submitted wi th business license applications by nine vendors.

2015-26 Under the procurement code and policy, bids are to be obtained for purchases that exceed $2.500. However the
Ci ty did not obtain bids for the purchase of a mower for the Recreation Department.



CITY OF LIBERTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OK RESPONSES TO THE FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

20] 5- 1 The City \ \ i l l rely upon the expertise of the auditors to prepare the financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting pr inc ip les .

2015- 2 The City wi l l cont inue to try to record all of the current year's transactions in the current sear's financial
accounting records. The Cil\l enhance the i r month-end and year-end cut-off procedures to ensure tha t
all relevant transactions have been recorded.

2015- 3 All general ledger account transactions \ \ i l l be reviewed for recording accuracv in the future .

2015- -\h the l im i t ed accounting staff, to tal and complete segregation of duties \ \ i l l he hard to achieve. I lowever,
the City w i l l review the current dut ies of the account ing personnel and make necessary changes in the
segregation of duties to improve the in terna l control over the financial t ransactions.

201 5- 5 All future check requests \l be signed and approved by the respective department heads before being
honored by the Adminis t ra t ive Department.

2015- 6 A l l future petty cash reimbursement requests w i l l be signed and approved by the Water Clerk.

2015- 7 A petty cash reimbursement request w i l l be prepared for all future requests.

20! 5- 8 The Ma\or and or a member of Counci l v \ i l l reviev\e effectiveness of the internal control system
periodical!}, and they \ \ i l l make necessary enhancements to the City's internal control system.

201 5- 9 The Mayor and or a member of Counci l w i l l review the general ledger transactions on a mon th ly basis. The
Mayor w i l l design and implement a mon th ly transaction checkl i s t to enhance their oversight responsibil i t ies .

2015-10 The dupl icate payroll check received bv the cmpkneein the Admin is t ra t ive Department was repaid dur ing the
current year. Hie overpayments made to the employees in the Water and Recycling Departments were
deducted from the employees1 next paychecks. Wi th regards to the other payrol l errors that were not delected
b> the City, a more cursory re\v of pavro l l data \ \ i l l be performed in the future to prevent these same errors.

2015-1 I The Mayor issued a memo to each department asking that invoice documentation be submitted lor any
purchases made for the City. Furthermore, any expenditures for wh ich invoice documentat ion is not submitted
\ v i l l be perceived as personal, and the emplovce \ \ i l l be responsible for payment .

2015-12 limployees w i l l be more v i g i l a n t in submi t t i ng documental ion for all future expenditures made. Otherwise, the
expenditure w i l l be perceived as personal, and the employee w i l l be responsible for payment.

2015-13 Reviews of fixed assets w i l l be performed at least quarterly for all departments by someone who is not
responsible for purchasing the fixed assets.

2 0 1 5 - 1 4 The Recreation Department w i l l designate someone to perform the monthly reconci l ia t ion of the a th le t ic fees.
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201 5-15 The Water Department billed each \\ater customer for the difference between \\hat \vas actual I) billed and
what should have been billed for October 2014. I lowever, since the City appears to have frec|uent technical
difficulties \ \ i th the \\aler billing system, the City may need to look into purchasing a more up-to-date billing
system.

2015-16 The Mayor issued a memo to all departments prohibiting future use of the City's credit cards for personal
purchases. Any employees found guilty of utilizing the Ci ty 's credit cards to make personal purchases will
receive disciplinary action.

2015 -17 No checks will be \\ritlen for future purchases. Any purchases for the City will be made by credit card and will
be substantiated with invoice documentation.

2015-18 Any employee who can't provide accountability fora check cashed and used for change funds for a particular
event \l be responsible for repaying the City for the amount taken out of the Ci ty 's bank account.

2015-19 One employee in the Police Department reimbursed the City during the current year for the upgrade. The
employees in the l-'irc Department repaid the City back after year end for the upgrades, and the employee in the
Administrative Department did not repay the City. Any future cell phone upgrades will be the responsibility of
the employee.

2015-20 All hospitality tax payments will be submitted to one person and kept in a secure central location until
deposited.

2015-21 The City billed the vendor who underpaid the March 2015 hospitality tax payment for the difference between
the amount that \ \as actually paid and the amount that should have been paid. Also, the City paid the vendor
who overpaid the March 2015 hospitality tax payment for the difference between the amount that was actually
paid and the amount that should have been paid.

201 5-22 Any employ ee \\ho does not attend any future training seminars paid by the City will be responsible for
reimbursing the City.

2015-23 The City \\ i l l be more vigilant in ensuring that the appropriate rale is being withheld for SCRS members and
for PORS members.

201 5-24 The City transferred the money back into the TIP bank account.

2015-25 When applicable the South Carolina Department of Revenue's gross sales listing will be utilized to confirm
gross receipts.

2015-26 The City \vi l l practice better adherence to the procurement code and policy as needed in the future.
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